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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”) (THE “GEM”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of the
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors of China Binary Sale Technology
Limited (the “Company” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which

would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Financial Summary
BEBE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTRE ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®TE
e e s B Y

Results (for the year ended %45

31 December) (Bi=12 A1 LLFE)
— Revenue - A 48,329 63,094 61,228 53,252 46,063
— Gross profit —E F 41,502 42,712 41,971 33,791 27,620
— Listing expenses —FmHX = = (8,310) (4,492) -
— Profit before income tax ~ — & {81 5 % 25,304 27,400 21,065 17,877 18,722
expenses Al A
— Profit and total —F &M &
comprehensive SEWRERE
income for the year 18,272 20,611 14,886 13,412 14,692
Earnings per share BREMNAREE D)
(RMB cents)
— Basic —&HAK 3.96 4.32 4.03 CNE N/A
TEA
Financial Position B 15 AR R
(as at 31 December) (R12A31H)
— Non-current assets —ERHEE 24,880 4,643 1,875 2,117 2,277
— Current assets —REEE 176,480 153,720 121,431 129,104 115,376
— Current liabilities —nBaE 60,964 52,021 41,008 60,243 61,782
— Non-current liabilities —JFREBEE 6,873 4,366 2,408 6,402 4,707

— Total equity — s 133,523 101,976 79,895 64,576 51,164
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRSG

On behalf of the board of the Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”).

REVIEW

In 2015, the Group accomplished operating revenue of approximately
RMB48,329,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB14,765,000
or 23.4% as compared to RMB63,094,000 in 2014. The Group was
continuously exploring measures to reduce cost while revenue declined. In
2015, the Group made great achievements on cost controlling. Operating
cost for the Year was RMBG6,827,000, representing a decrease of
RMB13,555,000 or approximately 66.5% as compared to RMB20,382,000 in
2014. Gross profit amounted to approximately RMB41,502,000, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB1,210,000 or 2.8% as compared to
RMB42,712,000 in 2014.

In 2015, the Group accomplished profit before income tax expense of
approximately RMB25,304,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB2,096,000 or 7.6% as compared to RMB27,400,000 in 2014.

In 2015, the Group achieved profit and total comprehensive income of
approximately RMB18,272,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB2,339,000 or 11.3% as compared to approximately RMB20,611,000 in
2014.

AABUHRERESS(EEE))MRAZH e
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010F REBBHREAERAHNDARE
48,329,000 7T * #2014 4 #y A R # 63,094,000
ToE T AR %)14,765,000 7T 523.4% U
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FE 20154 F WA RS FIB TRARRE
I RFEEEEKAL A ARKS6,827,0007T -
20148 A R #20,382,0007T W2 T AR
# 13,555,000 7T 8k #166.5% ° £ 7 49 & A R
41,502,000 7T * #2014 4 9 A R # 42,712,000
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHRE (F)

OUTLOOK

In 2016, the Group will continue to actively identify and explore new online
game operators, and strive to capture business opportunities. On the other
hand, the Group will also control cost and explore new service which could
leverage on its existing business to enhance the profitability of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and management, | would like to express gratitude to
the Group’s staffs for their hard work during the Year. | would also like to
extend my thanks to all shareholders, Directors and business partners who
have supported the Group.

Chairman
Wei Zhonghua

15 March 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEEMWASH

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in providing online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers. The Group
offers online transaction platform which could enable online game users to
pay their online game accounts through mobile top-up credits by operating
its self-developed Shenzhoufu System and cooperating with online game
operators in the PRC. The Group uses the mobile top-up credits received
from online game users to top up mobile subscription accounts. Such
process can also be realized by use of Shen Zhou Fu Card issued by the
Group on the internet. Besides, the Group is also engaged in distribution of
online game products, the operation of the Game Review Website, and
provision of information technology services.

On 15 April 2015, the Company submitted formal application to the Stock
Exchange for the proposed transfer of the listing of the shares of the
Company from GEM to the main board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Application”). As six months had passed since the submission of the
Application, the Application has lapsed. The Company has re-submitted on
24 December 2015 the Application, which is still under the process of review
by the Stock Exchange and approval has yet to be granted to the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2015, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB48,329,000,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB14,765,000 or 23.4% as
compared to RMB63,094,000 of last year. The principal change in revenue
during the Year was as follows:

1. Online Transaction Services

During the Year, the transaction volume of online transaction services
declined. There were 24.171 million transactions of providing online
transaction services to the online game operators through the
Shenzhoufu system, which decreased by approximately 8.396 million
transactions or 25.8% as compared to 32.567 million transactions in
2014. The transaction amount for the whole Year was approximately
RMB1,336,000,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB592,000,000 or 30.7% as compared to that of RMB1,928,000,000
of last year. In 2015, the average discount granted by game operators
decreased to 3.30% from 3.54% in 2014, representing a decrease of
6.8%.

£ JE)

AEBELZNTIEXBR/BEREF LER
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The revenue generated from online transaction services decreased
from approximately RMB59,383,000 in 2014 to approximately
RMB39,143,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB20,240,000 or 34.1%. The decrease in the transaction volume of
online transaction services was mainly due to the lose of certain game
customers and the decrease of the transaction volume of several online
game operators which had relatively high amount of transactions in
previous years.

Due to the decrease in transaction volume of online transaction
services, the transaction volume of mobile top-up services also
declined. During the Year, there were 36.345 million transactions of
mobile top-up services provided by the Group, which decreased by
approximately 5.608 million transactions or 13.4% as compared to
41.953 million transactions in 2014. The transaction amount was
approximately RMB2,759,000,000, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB562,000,000 or approximately 16.9% as compared
to that of RMB3,321,000,000 for the last year.

As the transaction volume of the business of online transaction services
decreased sharply and the decrease in transaction volume of mobile
top-up services was relatively small, the Group was required to directly
purchase more mobile top-up cards from telecommunication operators
or their distributors to fuffill the top-up demand. In 2015, the nominal
value of the mobile cards externally purchased by the Group was
approximately RMB1,393,000,000, accounting for 50.2% of the
nominal amount of mobile top-up services for the whole year, while for
2014, the nominal value of the mobile cards externally purchased by
the Group was RMB1,345,000,000, accounting for 40.2% of the
nominal amount of mobile top-up services for the year. In 2015, the
Group explored several channels with relatively low procurement price,
and the overall acquisition cost was lowered down.

Distribution of Online Game Products

In 2015, the transaction amount from distributing online game products
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB244,062,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB99,525,000 or 68.9%
as compared to that of RMB144,537,000 in 2014, which was mainly
attributable to the game point cards exchange business. However, as
the purchase cost of game point cards increased, the revenue from
distribution of game products for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB4,123,000, representing an increase of RMB484,000 or 13.3% as
compared to RMB3,639,000 in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENwED N (E)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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3.  Provision of Information Technology Services
Since the second quarter of the Year, the Group has undertaken the
businesses of providing technology development and technology
services to external parties and entered into cooperation agreements
with several companies, which generated revenue of approximately
RMB5,060,000 during the Year.

Cost of Revenue

In 2015, the cost of revenue of the Group was reduced to RMB6,827,000
from approximately RMB20,382,000 in 2014, decreased by approximately
RMB13,555,000 or 66.5%. The decrease in the cost of revenue was mainly
due to two factors:

One was that the Company had made great efforts in the upgrading of
hardware and system over the past few years and the processing efficiency
of transactions was improved. Thereby the Company gradually closed down
some outsourcing interface maintenance channels during the Year, which
resulted in the reduction of interface maintenance fee to approximately
RMB1,827,000 for the Year from approximately RMB9,380,000 for last year,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB7,553,000 or 80.5%.

The other one was that due to the decline in the transaction volume of mobile
top-up services, the Group made structural adjustment in mobile top-up
channels with different handling fees, which significantly reduced the cost of
handling fee from approximately RMB10,051,000 in last year to approximately
RMB4,065,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of 59.6%. In 2015,
there was a significant decrease in handling fee, and its general average rate
declined from 0.29% in 2014 to 0.15% in 2015.

Gross Profit

During the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB41,502,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB1,210,000
or 2.8% as compared to RMB42,712,000 in 2014, and the gross profit
margin in 2015 increased to 85.9% from 67.7% in 2014 due to the sharply
decrease of cost of the revenue.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased from
RMB3,579,000 in 2014 to RMB3,115,000 in 2015, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB464,000 or 13.0%. The decrease in sales expense was
due to the stable operation model of the Group, and resulted in the decrease
of relevant expense.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Administrative Expenses

In 2015, the administrative expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB15,120,000, representing an increase of approximately RMB2,098,000
or 16.1% as compared to RMB13,022,000 in 2014. Reasons for the increase
of administrative expenses mainly include labor cost increased
RMB1,476,000, which was mainly due to the fact that the Company adjusted
the remuneration of staffs based on the general salary level in the market to
provide a competitive emolument policy aiming to attract and retain talent
staffs.

Income Tax Expenses

During the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB7,032,000 (2014: RMB6,789,000) with the effective tax rate of 27.8%
(2014 24.8%).

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

During the Year, the profit and total comprehensive income of the Group was
approximately RMB18,272,000, representing a decrease of RMB2,339,000
or approximately 11.3% as compared to RMB20,611,000 in 2014.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2015, bank and cash balances of the Group was
approximately RMB45,499,000 (31 December 2014: RMB64,820,000), which
was mainly denominated in RMB, USD and HKD.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any loans or shareholders’
loans (31 December 2014: nil).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately RMB24,880,000 (31 December 2014: RMB4,643,000). The
significant increase in non-current assets was due to the increase in long-
term investment. The long-term investment of the Group increase from
RMB1,300,000 in 2014 to RMBZ20,910,000, representing an increase of
RMB19,610,000. The total current assets was approximately
RMB176,480,000 (31 December 2014: RMB153,720,000). The current asset
mainly includes the increase in the balance of inventories and the balance of
prepayment from game operators. The total amount of current liabilities was
RMB60,964,000 (31 December 2014: RMB52,021,000). The current liabilities
increased by RMB8,943,000, which was mainly the unsettled payables to
game operators. As at 31 December 2015, amounts due from related
companies by the Group were RMB2,942,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,973,000). As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio was 2.89
(81 December 2014: 2.95). The Group’s gearing ratio is nil.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The principal business operated by the Group was denominated in RMB,
while part of assets and liabilities may be denominated in USD or HKD. Any
material fluctuation of exchange rate from the USD and HKD against RMB will
result in influence on the financial results of the Group. The Group will
continue to monitor its foreign currency exposure closely. During the Year, the
Group had a foreign exchange gain of approximately RMB48,000 (2014: gain
of RMB1,000) resulted from the change of the exchange rate.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluation of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can
meet its funding requirements.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 95 employees (31 December 2014:
95). For the Year, the staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration of the
Group, amounted to approximately RMB8,589,000 (2014: RMB7,099,000).

The Group believes that employees are one of its most important assets. In
order to offer a competitive remuneration to employees, the Group adjusted
their remuneration to closely relevant to their performance, education
background and experience, as well as the condition of the labour market in
2015. As a result, staff costs increased significantly during the Year by 21.0%.
The Group also positively provides training opportunities for employees to
strengthen their working skills.
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Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against the Group.

Significant Investment and Capital Commitment

The Group’s long-term investment increased to RMB20,910,000 from
RMB1,300,000 in 2014 with an increase of RMB19,610,000. During the Year,
Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, increased
its investment in Shenzhen Beiyun Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beiyun
Network”) by RMB1,000,000 and its shareholding reached 15.625%. Beiyun
Network is an enterprise engaging in information of bitcoin, social network
and sharing-economy services. On 19 October 2015, Beijing Tianjiyilian
Technology Co., Ltd. (“TJYL”), entered into a “capital injection and
shareholders agreement” with Beijing Zhangzhong Technology Co., Ltd. (it
RERREARATF) (“Zhangzhong Technology”), pursuant to which TJYL
shall invest RMB15,300,282.9 in Zhangzhong Technology by way of capital
injection. Zhangzhong Technology is a company providing peer-to-peer
internet financial service, and operating a P2P product, being “Instant Loan” (“FJ
FIEF") and “Instant financial management” (‘B9EIEEL”). The capital
injection was completed on 30 October 2015. During the Year, TJYL, made
investments of RMB100,000 and RMB200,000 in Beijing Guorenbao
Technology Co., Ltd. JtRRCEREEBRAT) (“Guorenbao”) and
Shijiazhuang Aigigi Information Technology Co., Ltd. (AR E (&= 83T
BIRA7) (“Aigiai”), respectively, with a shareholding of approximately 8.96%
and 20%, respectively. Guorenbao is an enterprise engaging in financial
information on the internet and mobile internet as well as segment-chain
technology services. Aigigi is an enterprise undertaking outsourcing business
of technology development and technology services of internal information at
enterprise level. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material capital
commitment or made any future plans for material investment or acquisition
of capital asset or material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the Year.

Use of Proceeds

As of 31 December 2015, the Group had not utilized any raised funds from
listing. Proceeds from the placing were currently deposited in the bank
account of Shenzhoufu Software as short-term deposits.
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Comparison between Business Plan and Actual

Business Progress

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM on 4 December 2013. The
net proceeds from placing were approximately HK$48.301 million. As at 31
December 2015, the comparison between the business plan that was
disclosed in the prospectus dated 27 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”) and
the actual business development during the year was as follows:

Business Objectives

XBER
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Execution in 2015
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Maintain and enhance its leading position as
an online transaction services provider in the
Chinese online game market;

RELEEBEETFEMELERTSIERSB
ERGRBGHEERE BT

Expand its online transaction services to
overseas Users;

BAREMBIABPRERENE LERZ SRS

Become the leading integrated online game
information and transaction service provider
by successfully developing the Game Review
Website into a professional and comprehensive
online game information platform and
promoting online games through the Game
Review Website.
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HHREEERERATFERERERMTR
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In 2015, with the rapid development of mobile games, part share of the market of
online games is occupied by it. The decreased transaction amount of online
transaction services provided by the Group, the transaction amount decreased
from approximately RMB1,928,000,000 in 2014 to RMB1,336,000,000,
representing a decrease of 30.7%. The Group is actively identifying new online
game operators for cooperation, and continuously explore new services which
could leverage its existing business and enhance the Group’s leading position in
the market.
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During the Year, the Group was continuously providing services to overseas mobile
subscribers and online game users via www.shenzhoufu.hk, the website operated
by Shen Zhou Xing, a Hong Kong subsidiary.
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During the Year, the Group incurred operating costs of RMB1,157,000 in Youxiping
business. As of the end of 2015, all the funds injected in the Youxiping business
were internal capital of the Group, and no proceeds were utilized.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Jiangtao, aged 38, is the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director, and was appointed as Executive Director on 11 May 2011. He is
also a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Sun joined the Group in October 2004. He is responsible for
the overall management and business development of the Group. Mr. Sun
graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics with a
bachelor’s degree in Engineering. In 2012, Mr. Sun was acknowledged as “2012
Qutstanding Young Entrepreneur in the Industry of China’s Electronic
Information” by China Electronics Enterprises Association. In 2014, Mr. Sun
was recognized as 2014 China’'s Commercial Influential People (F B %52
£ A¥) by the Third Session of China Finance Summit Organizing
Committee (TR KIE€4ZE <€) and he has more than 15 years of
experience in corporate management, financing, operation, product design
and marketing.

Mr. Sun also serves as a director of Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software Technology
Co., Ltd., Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing Tianjiyilian
Technology Co., Ltd., and the chairman of Beijing Wanlefu Technology
Limited. All the above companies are the subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 35, is an executive director. Mr. Tang was appointed as
an executive Director on 8 June 2012. He is also the compliance officer of the
Company. Mr. Tang is responsible for overseeing the Group’s management
of sales and marketing department and maintenance of the daily operation.
Mr. Tang has over ten years of accumulated experience in the IT industry and
online game business and is familiar with the operation flow of the Group. Mr.
Tang graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics.

Mr. Tang also serves as an executive Director of Beijing Shenzhoufu Network
Technology Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Zhonghua, aged 38, is the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director. He joined the Group in October 2004 and was appointed
as a Non-executive Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Wei is responsible for supervising administrative
activities of the Group and giving suggestions to the formation of strategies.
Mr. Wei graduated from the University of Science and Technology Beijing with
a bachelor’s degree in Engineering. Mr. Wei has over 17 years of experience
in the IT industry.
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Mr. Li Jianguang, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 9
April 2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the
Group and providing suggestions for policy making.

Mr. Li graduated from the department of economics of the Beijing University
in 1987 and received a master’s degree in Science from the Guelph University
in Canada in 1994. He accumulated rich experience in investment from years
of career experience. Mr. Li has served as a Non-executive Director of HC
International, Inc. (@ company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2280) since August 2006.

Mr. Lan Xi, aged 29, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 9 April
2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the Group
and providing suggestions for policy making. He has six years of experience
in investment bank and investment.

Mr. Lan graduated from the Beijing University in July 2008 with a bachelor’s
dual degree in electrical information science and technology and economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Haoran, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee on 9 April 2015. Mr. Yang has over 16 years of
experience in internet industry. He graduated from the Anhui University of
Science and Technology and received a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering in 1991 and received a master’s degree of computer from the
University of Texas at Dallas in 1998.

Mr. Hou Dong, aged 44, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. Hou has more
than 10 years of experience in management and capital investment. Mr. Hou
currently is a venture partner of Tuspark Venture Capital Management (Beijing)
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Hou obtained a master’s degree in Engineering and a master’s degree in
Economics.
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Mr. He Qinghua, aged 38, is an Independent Non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. He worked for several famous
international accounting firms with over 15 years of experience in accounting,
internal control and risk management.

Mr. He graduated from University of International Business and Economics in
the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in International Corporate Management in
July 2000. He is a Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Wu Lingling, aged 28, joined the Group since January 2010. Prior to
taking the position of the acting chief financial officer of the Group (the “ACFO”),
she served as the finance manager. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wu served
as an auditor in Pan-China (Guanghua) Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
between July 2008 and January 2010. She possesses the Certificate of
Accounting Professional ((&&t{t¥E1EFE)) issued by Beijing
Municipality’s Financial Budget Department. Ms. Wu graduated from China
Women'’s University in June 2008 with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 35, is the Compliance Officer of the Group. For details of
his qualifications and experience, please refer to "Directors and Senior
Management Profiles — Executive Directors”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, aged 57, was appointed as the Company Secretary with
effect from 9 November 2013. Mr. Kwok has over 25 years’ in-house legal,
corporate secretarial and management experience gained at company
secretary and other senior positions from reputable listed companies in Hong
Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent and Hang Seng Mid-Cap 50
Index stock companies) and overseas.

Mr. Kwok matriculated from Queen’s College, holds a professional diploma in
company secretaryship and administration, a bachelor’s degree of arts and a
post-graduate diploma in laws and has passed the Common Professional
Examination in England and Wales.
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Mr. Kwok is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrator in England, the Institute of Financial Accountants in England,
The Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries (the “HKICS”), The Hong Kong Association of
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He possesses other
professional qualifications in arbitration, tax, financial planning and human
resource management. He was a chief examiner and the longest-serving
council member of the HKICS.

Mr. Kwok currently also serves as the company secretary and a joint
company secretary of a number of companies listed on the Main Board and
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, respectively. He was an independent non-
executive director of a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is the head of corporate secretarial in Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited and a director of Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar. He is not an
employee of the Company and he can contact Ms. Wu Lingling, the ACFO, in
relation of to any corporate secretarial matters.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

The directors of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the “Company” and
the “Directors”, respectively) have pleasure in presenting their annual report
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015 (the
“Year”).

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company'’s registered office and principal place of business are located
at Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman
KY1-1112, Cayman Islands and 6th Floor, No. 1 Building Taiyueyuan, Haidian
District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in providing online transaction services by facilitating transactions
between online game operators and online game users, and providing mobile
top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND
PLACING

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalize the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s ordinary
shares of US$0.001 each (the “Shares”) on the GEM, the Company became
the holding company of the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are as set
out in “History and Development” of the prospectus issued by the Company
dated 27 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”).

Following the placing of 120,000,000 Shares at a price of HK$0.60 per Share
(the “Placing”), the Company was initially listed on the GEM on 4 December
2013 (the “Listing Date”).
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STRUCTURED CONTRACT

The Group is principally engaged in, through Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”) and its subsidiaries, provision of online transaction
services. Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations, foreign investors,
unless fulfilling the qualification requirements, are prohibited from holding
equity interest in an entity which conducts value-added telecommunications
services. Accordingly, the Group cannot acquire equity interest in Beijing
TJYL, which conducts our principal business and holds the assets and certain
licenses, approvals and permits required for the operation of our principal
business.

As a result of the foregoing, Beijing TJYL (and its shareholders, as the case
may be) entered into certain contracts (the “Structured Contracts”), with Mr.
Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Chunming, Mr. Wei Zhonghua (who are the registered
shareholders of Beijing TJYL and collectively the “Registered Owners”) and
Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhoufu Software”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 22 June 2011 (and
subsequently amended on 30 June 2012).

The Structured Contracts comprise an Exclusive Optional Share Purchase
Agreement, Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment Agreement, Share Pledge
Agreement, Exclusive Intellectual Property Purchase Agreement and Exclusive
Consulting and Services Agreement (as defined in the Prospectus), with
Shenzhoufu Software, pursuant to which Shenzhoufu Software has full
financial and operational control of Beijing TJYL. The series of Structured
Contracts as a whole allow the financial performance and economic benefits
of the business of Beijing TJYL to be included in the financial information of
the Company as if the Company is the parent company of Beijing TJYL.
Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, Beijing TJYL has an obligation to pay
the consulting and technical supporting services fees to Shenzhoufu Software
and Shenzhoufu Software has legal rights to retain such fees as its revenue,
and the Company is able to acquire the entire profit (including the retained
earnings) of Beijing TJYL under the terms of the Structured Contracts.
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In addition, the Registered Owners granted the individual appointed by
Shenzhoufu Software, to exercise their shareholder’s rights, including without
limitation, to declare, receive or decline the dividends or distribution. In the
event that the Registered Owners receive any dividends or distribution of
assets declared by Beijing TJYL, the Registered Owners are required to
return the dividend or distribution of assets so received to Shenzhoufu
Software within three days. Therefore, Shenzhoufu Software controls the
management and board of directors of Beijing TJYL and is able to acquire the
entire profit generated from Beijing TJYL under the Structured Contracts.
Details of the Structured Contracts are set out in the section headed
“Structured Contracts” on pages 123 to 140 of the Prospectus.

Apart from the above, save as the investment in Zhangzhong Technology,
there are no new arrangements pursuant to or under the Structured Contracts
(the “Contractual Arrangements”) entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and the PRC operational entity during the Year. There
was no material change in the Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances during the Year. During the Year, none of the Structured
Contracts mentioned above has been unwound as none of the restrictions
that led to the adoption of structured contracts under the Contractual
Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key consolidated financial information of Beijing
TJYL and its subsidiaries as prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards during the two financial years ended 31 December 2015,
respectively:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=+t—-HLEFE

Revenue W &=
Total assets BEE

2014 2015

—ET-MF —E-HF

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR#EFT) (AR¥®TR)
[

63,761 43,860

106,825 152,782
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THE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY

TO MITIGATE THE RISKS

Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHENREZAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

KARRMZEBITE

The PRC government may determine that the
Contractual Arrangements are not in compliance with
any existing or future applicable PRC laws or
regulations

FEBRAARERESNLFELITA
RARH)E A P BUERIOER

ERBETH

Certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may not
be enforceable under the PRC laws
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The Directors will closely monitor the latest development of the existing
or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Draft Foreign
Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the Company,
including Shenzhoufu Software and Beijing TJYL, are under the control
of PRC investors so as to comply with relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC.
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According to the amended and restated powers of attorney, the
amended and restated share pledge agreements and the amended and
restated exclusive business cooperation agreements, the arbitration
tribunal may decide compensation for the equity interests or property
ownership of Chinese business entities or their shareholders, decide
enforceable remedy or demand a bankrupt on Chinese business entities
or their shareholders for relevant business or enforceable asset transfer.
Any party is entitled to request the competent court to execute the
arbitration award when it comes into effect.
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHeNRFEZRAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

QRN ZEBITH

The Group depends upon the Structured Contracts to
conduct its operations in the PRC and receive
payments from Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries, which
may not be as effective in providing operational control
as direct ownership

AEEKBEBESHURPRETHEERS
IERREB R EKE A TWWHM i 1t 28 7£
RELCERFEIFARLNEEREBERREAN

The Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny by
the PRC tax authorities and a finding that the Group
owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the
Group’s profitability

‘EBIES
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The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable the Group to
receive the economic benefits derived by Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries through: () the Group’s potential right (if and when so
allowed under the applicable PRC laws) to acquire the equity interests in
Beijing TJYL; (i) the business structure under which the revenue
generated by Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries is substantially retained by
Shenzhoufu Software; and (i) Shenzhoufu Software’s right to control the
management and operation of, as well as, in substance, all of the voting
rights of Beijing TJYL. The Directors are also of the view that the current
dispute resolution measures under the Contractual Arrangements are
sufficient to preserve the rights of the Group under the current PRC laws.
BRI RHBEEFE BT AR ARE B WEUR B bR R %5
REMEB ARSNGB ()4 % B REIL RSB RE BT
BR (M REEATPEEERDT) (MG ELNRBILERRK
MR R HM B R B EE 2 REB D e 2 £ & 81 R (i) 48 M
PHEHIERREBHEEE SEURBEE TARZEENE
M- BETRR ANTHETHOREMRAUDEEEABLER
SENRBITHEEERET ZER -

Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificates issued by the
relevant tax authorities; (i) the Group has not encountered any
interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax authority or other
government authorities to the Contractual Arrangements; and (jii) neither
Beijing TJYL nor Shenzhoufu Software was entitled to any tax benefit
and no favorable impact on the Group’s tax liabilities was created when
the Contractual Arrangements were first entered into in 2008, the
Directors are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements are not likely
to be challenged by the PRC tax authority and other government
authorities.

KERNVEBANBELZATERER: (NEEREHEEMNPRH
TR HEMBAEEY SO ELE M TR EMEMEREE
RPN ZEENFERTLANTHRE L R A HBE L
MG —REEREFNZEEAH SN TEYREENTIE
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHEENREZAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

QRN ZEBRTH

The Group relies on the licences held by Beijing TJYL
and its subsidiaries and the interruption of the Group’s
relationship with Beijing TJYL could adversely affect the
Group’s business

AEEKBRILREREHERELNE AR
B-mPEASEEL R REBE BRI Y
75 B ) ¥ TS R F 2 2

There may be potential conflicts of interest between the
Group and the shareholders of Beijing TJYL
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To ensure sound and effective operation of the Group after the adoption
of the Contractual Arrangements, the relevant business units and
operation divisions of the Group will report regularly, which will be no less
frequent than on a monthly basis, to the senior management of the
Company on the compliance and performance conditions under the
Contractual Arrangements and other related matters.
RERAEBENRMNAN TR ARSI EE
BEBBUREESTHEMBAERTIRE A —
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The Company will adopt the following measures to manage the conflict
of interests arising from the competing business and to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders:
RAGBBERAATHEBATEBEEERFUEB 2NZER
BeE PR B8 Al 2 -
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(@  the independent non-executive Directors will review, on an annual
basis, the compliance with the undertaking given by Mr. Wei
Zhonghua, Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Swift Well Limited and Data King
Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”) under the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) entered into
between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders on 9
November 2013 regarding certain non-competition undertakings (the
“Non-competition Undertakings”) given by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company (for itself and as
trustee for its subsidiaries);
BUERTESTBRFEMRPELLE  FLF K% - Swift
wwmmm&mmmmumeﬁ&ﬁﬁnﬁ?ﬁf$”
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the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide all information
requested by the Company which is necessary for the annual
review by the independent non-executive Directors and the
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition;
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHeNRFEZRAR

AN

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

BARMZERETD

(©

(d)

For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements, please
refer to the section headed “Risk factors — Risks relating to the Structured

Contracts” in the Prospectus.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
There was no significant change in its activities during the Year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors regularly review revenue and

the Company will disclose decisions on matters reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors relating to compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
reports of the Company; and
RATERARBFREERB IR TEFTMENAAZER
REEFPRPTIHEFEZBETNIRFAB L EEMFEL
HURE K&

the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual declaration on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-
competition in the annual report of the Company.
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operating results derived from provision of online transaction services, profit
sharing with online game operators and provision of online advertising
services and consider such as one single operating segment.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations are
located in the PRC.

Information about major clients

There is no single customer which contributed to 10% or more revenue to the
Group’s revenue for the Year.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company at 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 57 to 116.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to recommend the
payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year (2014: nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY’S PLACING

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Placing, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other relevant fees and expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$48.301 million. For further details of the use of proceeds,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALIZATION

The Group had no interest capitalization for the Year.

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no bank borrowings.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in the
equity and in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately RMB52.314 million under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate mobile top-up transaction amount from the five
largest mobile top-up agents accounted for approximately 10.4% (2014:
12.3%) of the Group’s total mobile top-up amount, and mobile top-up
transaction amount from the largest mobile top-up agent of the Group
accounted for approximately 3.9% (2014: 5.4%) of the Group’s total mobile
top-up transaction amount.

For the Year, the aggregate transaction amount from the five largest online
game operators accounted for approximately 43.2% (2014: 36.9%) of the
Group’s total amount of online transaction service, and transaction amount
from the largest online game operator of the Group accounted for
approximately 11.8% (2014: 13.1%) of the Group’s total amount of online
transaction service.

For the Year, the aggregate purchasing amount from the five largest mobile
top-up service distributors accounted for approximately 76.5% (2014 78.0%)
of the Group’s total mobile top-up purchasing amount, and the purchasing
amount from the largest mobile top-up service distributor of the Group
accounted for approximately 30.5% (2014: 22.6%) of the Group’s total
mobile top-up purchasing amount.
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None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company
or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised any
rights in relation to convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 9
November 2013, the principal terms of which are set out below:

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for the Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (“Option”) to any of the
following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

(@) any Director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or
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the trustee of any trust, the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects of which include any Director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any Director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate.

Maximum Number of Shares

@)

Subject to paragraphs (b) to (d) below, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in aggregate,
exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless approved by the
Shareholders pursuant to paragraph (c) below. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Subject to paragraphs (c) and (d) below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the Shareholders in general meeting from time to
time provided always that the Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed must
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
such renewal by Shareholders in general meeting. Upon such renewal,
all Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including those exercised,
outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) prior to the approval of such renewal shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed.

Subject to paragraph (d) below, the Board may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
involving the issue or grant of Options or similar rights over Shares or
other securities by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. Notwithstanding anything
contrary to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, no Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Eligible Participant (except for the substantial
shareholders of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors)
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any grant of further Options
above this limit shall be subject to the following requirements:

(@) approval of the Shareholders at general meeting, with such Eligible
Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having been
sent by the Company to its Shareholders with such information from
time to time as required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”);

the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
grantee shall be fixed before the Shareholders’ approval mentioned in
paragraph (a) above; and

for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the
Shares in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted, the
date of Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options shall
be taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine,
which shall not exceed 10 years from the date the Option is deemed to have
been granted subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to the relevant Eligible Participants
and shall not be less than the highest of:

(@  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities (the “Business Day”);

an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Business
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and

(©

the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.

No share options were granted since the Listing Date. Therefore, no share
options were exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the Year and there were
no outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2015.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses by reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, their time commitment and the performance
of the Group. The Group also reimburses them for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group
or executing their functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The
Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors and senior management by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the performance of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee reviews the remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors and senior management by reference to their
responsibilities, work load, the time devoted to the Group, and performance
of the Group. The Directors and senior management may also receive
Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

%%&E%%%%ﬁkiZ%ﬁ

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals AEBEZEEZ=EN AR S HF AT 2FMFEB S
of the Group are set out in Note 9 and Note 10 to the consolidated financial Bl & 45 & B 75 SR R B 5L 9 FIFfT £ 10 ©

statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD

The Directors as of 31 December 2015 and up to the date of this report are

named as follows:

Executive Directors

Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer)™
Tang Bin

Non-executive Directors

Wei Zhonghua (Chairman)*
Li Jianguang (appointed on 9 April 2015)
Lan Xi (appointed on 9 April 2015)

Exg

R2015F12A31BE REZAREAEH &=
ZHEZIT

HITES

BB (7T B A8 %)™

& 3R

FHITESE

BApEE(xE)
A (R2015F4 AOBEE )
A (R2015F4 9B EEF)

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Haoran™ (appointed on 9 April 2015) 53RN (FA20155E4 BOR E & 1)
Hou Dong*"™ BN

He Qinghua® ] B A

A Member of the Audit Committee A BERZZEEKE

R: Member of the Remuneration Committee R: HMZEEEKE

N: Member of the Nomination Committee N: REZEEKE

In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. 1R 1% 48 &% = 72 4 B 2 84(1) R ) 1§ - )T )5 5t
Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bin and Mr. He Qinghua will retire from office by 4 « BEX 40 & & o] BB 2= 40 4 18 & 8 (E R (T -

rotation and eligible themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual R AARIEERERBAE NS ([REHE K
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”). ) FEERBRET-

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EERSHREE A8
PROFILES

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are setouton EFNRAEE SR EEABBNHINA L F
pages 15 to 18 of this annual report. Directors’ other particulars are contained ¥R F16E18E N - EFX Z K FBE AR

elsewhere in this annual report. FWREMAE -
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company on 1 May 2015, which will continue thereafter unless and until it is
terminated by the Company or the Director giving to the other not less than
three months’ prior notice in writing. Each of the executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus as determined by the Board.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs”) have entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of two years. The Non-executive Directors were not entitled to receive
any director fees or other remuneration. The annual emolument of each INED
for the year ended 31 December 2015 was HK$60,000.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors was
considered to have interests in a business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under Rule 11.04 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

Review of our business and performance

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group’s business is set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group:

° the Group’s business relies on the continued usage of the Shenzhoufu
System by online game users and mobile subscribers;

° the continued successful operation of the Group’s business depends
on the Group’s ability to maintain cooperation with existing partners in
the online game industry in the PRC and to enter into cooperation with
other online game operators;

° the Group’s business may face competition from the PRC
telecommunication companies if they seek to engage in the online
transaction service similar to the Group;

° The Game Review Website of the Group has a limited operating history;
and

o Given the change in business environment, Youxinping is making a
minimal revenue. As such, the Group has stopped making further
investment in Youxinping. The Director will continue monitoring the
business of Youxinping.

Details of the risks are set out in the section headed “Risk Factors” of the
Prospectus.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
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Particulars of important events

The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the Year.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to nurturing its staff to care about and protect the
environment. It conducts its business in a manner that balances the

environment and economic needs.

The Group complies with all relevant environment regulations. It works with its
partners including customers and suppliers in a concerted effort to operate in
an environmentally responsible manner by making concerted efforts to be
energy-efficient and to practise “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”.

Among others, the Group has taken the following initiatives:
o uses recycle print paper and toilet paper.

o adjusts the heat supply system to low settings during the winter
vacation period.

Stakeholders’ engagement

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us to
understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage our
resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community
development.
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Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers, workforce,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has the
Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted by or
about the execution of their duty. Such permitted indemnity provision has
been in force throughout the Year. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and
officers of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-
competition (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”) with Mr. Wei Zhonghua,
Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Swift Well Limited and Data King Limited (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) on 9 November 2013 regarding certain non-competition
undertakings given by each of the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries). A summary of the
principal terms of the Non-Competition Undertakings is set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders confirms that he/it had fully complied
with the Non-Competition Undertakings during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

The INEDs have reviewed the confirmation provided by each of the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of the Non-Competition Undertakings.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, there was no material contract between the Group and
the controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries during the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Note 30(a) and Note 30(c) to the
consolidated financial statements constitute continuing connected
transactions exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Shenzhoufu Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into certain Structured Contracts with Beijing TJYL and its equity
holders, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the chairman and a Non-Executive
Director and Mr. Wei Chunming. Details of the Structured Contracts are set
out in the “Structured Contracts” paragraph under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” on pages 262 to 265 of the Prospectus and the
section headed “Structured Contract” on pages 20 and 25 of this annual
report. The transactions (consulting and technical supporting services) under
the Structured Contracts carried out during the Year were approximately
RMB31,318,000 and the amounts have been eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, Beijing TJYL is a connected person of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under the Structured Contracts
are continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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The INEDs have reviewed the Structured Contracts and confirmed that: (1)
the transactions carried out during the Year had been in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Structured Contracts and had been operated so
that the revenue generated by Beijing TJYL had been substantially retained
by Shenzhoufu Software; (2) no dividends or other distributions had been
made by Beijing TJYL to the holders of its equity interests which were not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group; and (3) all
contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and
Beijing TJYL for the Year were in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable, or advantageous
so far as the Group was concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

BDO Limited (“BDQ”), Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong, the
Company’s independent auditor (the “Independent Auditor”), was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO has issued a
letter to the Board containing its findings and unqualified conclusions in
respect of the Group’s continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register as referred to therein, or (C)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company (the
“Shares”)
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Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held the issued Shares ™**9
L NN
e #1T e #ITRAG
EEnR B EMtE R 1D & =R A
Mr. Wei Zhonghua Interest of a controlled corporation ™" 127,141,873 26.49%
b s 185 A e
Mr. Sun Jiangtao Interest of a controlled corporation ™% 119,171,027 24.83%
BLBRE SRR
Mr. Tang Bin Beneficial owner
JE X 5t & EmlAA 588,000 0.12%
Notes: B 5
1. Details of the interest in the Company held by Swift Well Limited are set out in 1. Swift Well Limited R A R Bl AR 2 S FEH N T

the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

2. Details of the interest in the Company held by Data King Limited are set out in
the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors
had any interests or short positions in the shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified to
any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) which had 5% or more interests in the Shares and the underlying
Shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

TERAREMALHERS
RHERDZEZR AR
R20156F12A831H MARRIESHEETT
BRABFTASFES REESERBERD
FIKREFTENRMDREBERND T EE%

SRR ZAAFIALT(RRAREEFHER
THRABBRINFFRWT

Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of the interests Shares held issued Shares "*”
L NN
s 817 2#&TRMA
BREAR B, HExEHE %12 8 i Nl A
SWIFT WELL LIMITED Beneficial owner Mot 127,141,873 26.49%
Eéﬁﬁ/\m%w
DATAKING LIMITED Beneficial owner M€ 2 119,171,027 24.83%
E Hﬁ?& ﬁ A (P 5E2)
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Beneficial owner "€ 81,122,700 16.90%
FUNDIIL.P. ExHEa AE
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Interest of a controlled corporation M°*®% 81,122,700 16.90%
FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. S o | Sk (B ) e g (ES)
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Interest of a controlled corporation % 87,757,200 18.28%
GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. S o | Sk (B ) e 2 (ES)
Ho Chising Interest of a controlled corporation M 87,757,200 18.28%
el o
Zhou Quan Interest of a controlled corporation °®® 87,757,200 18.28%
Az 524K B A A 25 Y
VENTECH CHINA Il SICAR Beneficial owner M°¢9 26,409,900 5.50%

ERES A(Mﬁ‘ze)
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Notes:

1. SWIFT WELL LIMITED is owned as to 95% by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the Chairman
and a Non-executive Director, and 5% by Mr. Wei Chunming. Under the SFO,
Mr. Wei Zhonghua is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which SWIFT
WELL LIMITED is interested.

2. DATA KING LIMITED is wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an Executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Jiangtao
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which DATA KING LIMITED is
interested.

3. IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P. which owned 81,122,700 Shares is
an exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman lIslands. Its general
partner is IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. while the
general partner of IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. is
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. which is a limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Moreover, IDG-ACCEL CHINA
GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is the general partner of IDG CHINA
INVESTORS Il L.P. which owned 6,634,500 Shares. Under the SFO, IDG-ACCEL
CHINA GROWTH FUND II ASSOCIATES L.P. is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P. is interested,
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P.
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. are interested.

4. Ho Chising is a controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of IDG-
ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP
I ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

5. Zhou Quan is the other controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND
GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

6. The general partner of VENTECH CHINA Il SICAR (“VENTECH”) is VENTECH
CHINA SARL, a private limited liability company registered in Luxembourg. Under
the SFO, VENTECH CHINA SARL is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which VENTECH is interested.

7. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2015.

Save as disclosed above, no party had informed the Company that he/she/it
had interest or short positions in any issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2015.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or the chief executive of the Company or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received written confirmations of independence from each
INED, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. He Qinghua, pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the
Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares
were held by the public) as required under Rule 17.38A of the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the date of this report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE
ADVISER

As notified by the Company’s former compliance adviser, Quam Capital
Limited (the “Former Compliance Adviser”), except for the compliance adviser
agreement entered into between the Company and the Former Compliance
Adviser on the Listing Date (the “Former Compliance Adviser Agreement”),,
neither the Former Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interests in relation
to the Company or any member of the Group (including options or rights to
subscribe for such securities) as at 31 December 2015, which is required to
be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company and the Former Compliance Adviser have mutually agreed to
terminate the Former Compliance Adviser Agreement with effect from 13
January 2016 due to the then changes in the personnel of the Former
Compliance Adviser.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHE (E)

The Company has appointed Lego Corporate Finance Limited as its new
compliance adviser as required under Rules 6A.19 and 6A.27 of the GEM
Listing Rules, with effect from 19 January 2016. Announcement on the
change of compliance adviser has been made by the Company on 19
January 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 44 to 54 of this annual report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) consists of
three members, namely Mr. He Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both are INEDs
and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a non-executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. It has reviewed with management the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

There has been no change of the Independent Auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have been
audited by BDO which will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint BDO as
the Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Wei Zhonghua
Chairman

15 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERRSE

It is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part
in maintaining the success of the Company. The Board and the senior
management are dedicated to establishing and maintaining a high level of
corporate governance. Various measures have been adopted to enhance the
management efficiency of the Company and thus to protect the interest of the
Shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had applied the principles and complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules except the following deviation as stated below:

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”) should attend the annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”). However, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the Chairman, was unable to attend
the AGM held on 24 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM”) due to other business
engagements. In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Tang Bin, an executive
Director acted as chairman of the 2015 AGM to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company held the 2015 AGM in Hong Kong so as to establish a good
communication channel with the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”) as its own code of conduct for dealings in the securities of the
Company by the Directors made.

Following a specific enquiry of all Directors made by the Company, each of
them confirmed that he/she had complied with the Required Standard of
Dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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THE BOARD

During the Year, the Board comprised two executive Directors, namely Mr.
Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Tang Bin, three non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wei Zhonghua (Chairman), Mr. Li Jianguang and
Mr. Lan Xi and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), namely
Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. He Qinghua.

Relationship

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
the Directors. The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual
report.

Roles

The two executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performances of the Company and its subsidiary (the “Group”) and are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs.

The three INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial and
other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance in the
Board in order to effectively exercise independent judgement on the corporate
actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest and overall
interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs and at all times met the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and considers that all the INEDs to be independent.
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The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the management of
the Company’s business and the Group’s affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value through granting authority to the Company’s
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”). The Board approves and monitors the development and
implementation of the Group’s business policies, strategic decisions and
directions. The Board is also responsible for reviewing monthly financial
information, as well as reviewing and approving quarterly, interim and annual
results, annual budget, and other business matters and all other functions
reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”). The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions
to senior management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The
senior management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business
plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from
time to time.

The Board and its Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses in order to better
discharge their supervisory duties to the Company.

In accordance with Rule A.1.8 of the CG Code, appropriate insurance cover
has been arranged by the Company in order to provide protection in respect
of legal action against its Directors.

Meeting

During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings each at approximately
quarterly interval. In addition, special Board meetings are held when required.
Formal notice for each proposed regular meeting will be given at least 14
days before the day of the meeting. With regard to special Board meetings,
notices will be issued within a reasonable period. The meeting agenda and all
the accompanying documents relating to the proposed Board meeting will be
sent to each Director at least three days before the day of the proposed
meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review relevant
documents and prepare for the meeting. Directors can attend the Board
meeting in person or through other electronic means of communication.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) or his
delegate is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to the Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for the Directors’
inspection. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any Directors and their close
associates with a material interest in the transactions to be discussed at the
Board meetings will abstain from voting on resolutions approving such
transactions and will not be counted in the quorum at meetings.
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Attendances of Meetings

Four Board meetings, four Audit Committee meetings, one meeting for each
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee and the
2015 AGM were held during the Year. Attendances of these meetings by the

Directors are set out below:
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Audit Remuneration = Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee 2015 AGM

B 2015F BRR
Espng = £Z88 ¥VMZEEE REZEES BEXE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao BIERE 4/4  N/ATEF 1/1 11 0/1
Mr. Tang Bin BB %k A& 4/4  N/ATNEHF N/ATNE A N/ATNE 11
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua BPELE 4/4 4/4 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A 0/1
Mr. Zhang Zhen* REL A" 11 N/ATER N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE A
Ms. Guo Jia* FhE 11 N/ATER N/ATE A N/ATNE A N/AANE A
Mr. Li Jianguang** TR EE 3/3  N/ATEHR N/ATiE N/ATiE 01
Mr. Lan Xi** BAEES 3/3  N/ATER N/AT i A N/AT i A 0N
Independent Non-executive Directors 157 JE# 7T & &
Mr. Yang Guang* 15 3¢ 5o 11 NATER 1/1 1/1 N/ATNE A
Mr. Hou Dong BERELE 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 0/1
Mr. He Qinghua A EELE 4/4 4/4 N/AT 3 3 N/AT 3 3 0/1
Mr. Yang Haoran** GE R L™ 3/3  NATEHA N/ATN i N/ATN i 0/1
* Resigned as a Director with effect from 9 April 2015. * H2015F4 OB BBTES B -

* Appointed as a Director with effect from 9 April 2015.

ok

H2015F4AORREZTAE S -



48

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2015

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE (H)

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of the Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. The Company is dedicated
to arrange appropriate induction for the continuous professional development
for all Directors at the Company’s expenses to develop, replenish and refresh
their knowledge and skills.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors are
also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense.

During the Year, all Directors, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bin, Mr.
Wei Zhonghua, Mr Li Jianguang, Mr. Lan Xi, Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong
and Mr. He Qinghua have participated in continuous professional
development by attending conferences and internal training as regards
corporate governance, laws, regulations and the GEM Listing Rules, and
reading materials relevant to their duties, responsibilities and the Group’s
business in order to develop, refresh and update their knowledge and skills.

Training records for the Year have been provided by all Directors to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Wei Zhonghua, and the chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. Sun Jiangtao. The roles of the Chairman and chief executive
are separated and exercised by different individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors and the INEDs has been appointed for a
term of two years.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of reference, three Board
Committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Board Committee are in line with the
GEM Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee, among other things, are to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations to the
Board regarding the appointment of Directors and candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board; and assess the independence of INEDs. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou
Dong and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Yang Haoran is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to
review the structure, composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy;
make recommendation on the re-appointment of the retiring Directors and
assess the independence of INEDs. Attendance of the meeting has been
disclosed on page 47 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 9 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee, among other things, are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group and to
ensure that none of the Directors determines his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hou Dong,
Mr. Yang Haoran and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Hou Dong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee to
review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management.
Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed on page 47 of this report.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in Note 9, Note 10 and Note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the member of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

BEENARASHREEBEAEFWZHBERN
RABMIERRMFE - M EE10F1 M 5£30(0) A ©

RBOEERTAZTAKXEBISK &
REBRAB(ESHRIMNZFEFHFBERT
REAFEEZFEREEZTRSQEREARRG
MR- FMEEDT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band ¥ BN & ANE
Less than HK$1,000,000 11,000,000 7T 1

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 9 November 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee were revised and adopted on 30 December
2015 to include additional responsibility in relation to the risk management
system arising from the Stock Exchange’s proposal on the risk management
and internal control under the CG Code applicable to accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee, among other things are:

(@ to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditor;

(b) to review the financial statements and provide material advice in
respect of financial reporting;

(c)  tooversee internal control procedures of the Company;

(d)  to review arrangements for employees to raise concerns about financial
reporting improprieties;

(e) to review the financial control, risk management and internal control

system of the Company;
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) to discuss with the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems; and

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings.

At present, the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. He
Qinghua, Mr. Hou Dong, both are INEDs and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a non-
executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. Attendance of the
meetings has been disclosed on page 47 of this report.

The Audit Committee meetings reviewed the first and third quarterly and the
interim results for 2015 as well as the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for considering the
re-appointment of BDO Limited, certified public accountants as the
Company’s independent auditor (the “Independent Auditor”) at the 2015
AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
at its meeting held on 15 March 2016 before submission to the Board for
approval. The members of the Audit Committee considered that the results
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and the
GEM Listing Rules and sufficient disclosure has been made.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
of the Company, which are set out in the written terms of reference. The
Board, among other matters, has reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the Year amounted
to HK$559,000 (2014: HK$559,000). The amount of non-audit service fee
was HK$112,000 (2014: HK$40,000), primarily relating to transfer of listing.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and ensures that the financial statements have
adopted the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
complied with the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
GEM Listing Rules. The Board is also responsible for the filing of appropriate
accounting records that reasonably and accurately disclose the financial
position of the Group at any time.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the internal control system of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for
maintaining sound and effective internal control system to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Board considers that the internal controlling system of the Group
operated efficiently for the Year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr. Kwok”), who has been
appointed by the Board since 9 November 2013 and has been so nominated
by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) under an
engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting is Ms. Wu
Lingling, the acting chief financial officer of the Company, in relation to
corporate secretarial matters. As Mr. Kwok was first appointed as the
company secretary of a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock
company in 1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of other
reputable companies listed on the Stock Exchange at material times since
then, he is not required to have at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training in the Year under the GEM Listing Rules. However, he delivered/
attended relevant seminars organised by professional and other bodies for
over 15 hours during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (the “EGM”)

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the Company.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, Shareholders holding not
less than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company can convene an EGM
by depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring the convening of the EGM. The written
requisition shall be deposited to the Company Secretary at 31/F, 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for any
enquiries in relation to the Group by contacting the Group’s Investor Relations
team at investor@shenzhouxing.com.cn. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Investor Relations team will forward Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to
the Board, Board committees or management as appropriate. Alternatively,
Shareholders can put forward any proposals at a Shareholders’ meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the statutes and the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Company may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director.

A Shareholder may propose a person (other than himself/herself) for election
as a Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary:

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as
a Director; and

2. a notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director, together with that person’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Such notices shall be lodged no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election at least seven (7)
clear days before the date of the general meeting. The period for lodgement
of such notices shall be at least seven (7) clear days in length.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company its Memorandum and Articles of Association. During the Year, no
amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
% 3L % BB 3R

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA BINARY SALE TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Binary Sale
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 57 to 116, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Alfred Lee

Practising Certificate Number P04960

Hong Kong, 15 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeZElaE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M & AR%T ARET T
7
Revenue B A 7 48,329 63,094
Cost of revenue U A B AR (6,827) (20,382)
Gross profit EH 41,502 42,712
Other income and gains H b g A R e 7 1,651 1,689
Change in fair value of financial assets at BAFEFAEENSH
fair value through profit or loss BEANTFEZS 386 (400)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HAX (3,115) (3,579
Administrative expenses THAX (15,120) (13,022)
Profit before income tax expense B BT S BB 2 A s I 8 25,304 27,400
Income tax expense Fris i = 11 (7,032) (6,789)
Profit and total comprehensive income FERERNRE2EKE
for the year P 18,272 20,611
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income AT & B e F s R~
for the year attributable to: (BE)E2EW 2 :
Owners of the Company AKRARER A 18,986 20,757
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR 7 = (714) (146)
18,272 20,611
Earnings per share (RMB cents) EM(ARED)
— Basic —&K 13 3.96 4.32
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As at 31 December 2015 72015412 A31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 3E AR®ET ARET T
e ———
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W HEREE 14 1,839 1,539
Intangible assets mILEE 15 2,131 1,804
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESsREE 17 20,910 1,300
Total non-current assets IFRBEELTE 24,880 4,643
Current assets RBEE
Trade and bills receivables B 5 R FIE R EREE 18 3,360 3,391
Prepayments, deposits and TENF e REAM
other receivables & W Fk IR 19 68,884 44,825
Inventories e 20 54,809 36,111
Amounts due from related companies FEUR RGN B RIE 21 2,942 3,973
Financial assets at fair value through EAVFEFAEZN
profit or loss EREE 22 986 600
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEESEEY 23 45,499 64,820
Total current assets MENE E B 176,480 158,720
Liabilities a8&
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables 2 5 R RIE 24 45,760 41,989
Other payables and accruals EMEMZENESE R 25 13,839 9,746
Current tax liabilities RSB E 1,365 286
Total current liabilities ME) B E AR 60,964 52,021
Net current assets REBEERE 115,516 101,699
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRBEE 140,396 106,342
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2015 72015412 A31H

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 3E AR®T R ARET T
I N 1
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RLER B EE 26 6,873 4,366
Total non-current liabilities FEREFaERsE 6,873 4,366
NET ASSETS EEFE 133,523 101,976
Equity attributable to owners of EKATEEA
the Company LR
Issued capital BEITIR AR 27 2,941 2,941
Reserves E 116,697 97,711
119,638 100,652
Non-controlling interests FERER 13,885 1,324
TOTAL EQUITY MR 133,523 101,976
On behalf of the Board
REEEZ
Wei Zhonghua Sun Jiangtao
MrpE BILE
Director Director
EF EF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AP EEEAEGES
Issued Share Capital ~ Statutory  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
BETRE ROEE BXRE EERE REEN st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 28(@))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(c))  (note 28(d))

(F15£28()) (Bt E£28(b)

(Fit5E28(c)) (P 7E28(d))
]

Non-

controlling
interests Total equity
iR ER 4
RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT ARETL

At 1 January 2014 R2014F1 A1H 2,941 47,899 1,371 9,994 17,690 79,895 — 79,895
Profit/(loss) and total FREF/(BER)

comprehensive income REERSEE

for the year — — — — 20,757 20,757 (146) 20,611
Capital contribution from 3% & K B 22 & 3k

non-controlling equity TRERFEEE

holders of a subsidiary HERTE = = = = - - 1,470 1,470
Appropriation to statutory B AJETE

reserve = = = 2,584 (2,584) = = =
At 31 December 2014 and 2014512 A31H

1 January 2015 & 20151 A1H 2,941 47,899 1,371 12,578 35,863 100,652 1,324 101,976
Profit/(loss) and total FREH/(BE)

comprehensive income keERRBE

for the year - - - - 18,986 18,986 (714) 18,272
Capital contribution from & & ii B 22 &1 3F

non-controlling equity TR ESEAE

holders of subsidiaries MERTE - = = = = = 13,275 13,275
Appropriation to statutory & A% i i &

reserve - - - 2,535 (2,535) - - -
At 31 December 2015 72015F12A31H 2,941 47,899 1,371 15,113 52,314 119,638 13,885 133,523




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeEBeNER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE
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2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR T T
7
Profit before income tax expense BRATE R X AER 25,304 27,400
Adjustments for: KR
Interest income AMEMA (1,338) (685)
Depreciation of property, YE - HE LR
plant and equipment e 527 554
Written off of property, plant and equipment WiEME  WE REE 2 =
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 292 365
Impairment loss on prepayments FENRNFOREERE 301 206
Change in fair value of financial assets at EAFEFABZNSH
fair value through profit or loss BEAFEEH (386) 400
Operating profit before EEECHIALE
working capital changes i ) 24,702 28,240
Decrease in trade and bills B 5 W FIE R EKREE
receivables DA 31 1,709
Increase in prepayments, AR e REAMER
deposits and other receivables IEIE N (24,360) (21,460)
Increase in inventories FEEM (18,698) (17,945)
Decrease in amounts due from JE Ui B 3 A B IR R
related companies 1,031 2,114
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE 1 s IAE N 3,771 7,590
Increase in other payables HEMEMNZFIBERETER
and accruals 1% 40 4,093 4,862
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EE(FTA), FEES (9,430) 5,110
Income taxes paid B ER (3,446) (6,269)
Net cash used in operating activities ReEXKEFAARSTHE (12,876) (1,1595)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHABEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BHMENLKBE (829) (651)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEMEE (285) (366)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEESREE
financial assets (19,610) (1,300)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZATEFAERZN
through profit or loss TRMEE = (1,000)
Interest received RPN 1,338 366
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Net cash used in investing activities RETZDFFARESFE (19,386) (2,851)
Cash flows from financing activities BMETHEECZRSRE
Capital contribution from non-controlling PGELIEAGIER Y e

equity holders of a subsidiary BEEENERTE 12,941 —
Net cash from financing activities METBRESREELEH 12,941 -
Net decrease in cash HeRASEZEMRD

and cash equivalents FE (19,321) (4,0006)
Cash and cash equivalents FURERES

at the beginning of year EEY 64,820 68,826
Cash and cash equivalents FERASRES

at the end of year ZEBY 45,499 64,820
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRESEEYEH

and cash equivalents i
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHES 45,499 64,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FREMERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 11 May 2011. Its issued shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s registered office
and principal place of business are located at Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands and 6th Floor, No.1 Building Taiyueyuan, Haidian District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in providing online transaction services by facilitating
transactions between online game operators and online game users,
and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are as set out in “History and Development” of the
prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November 2013.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation

As a result of the Reorganisation mentioned in note 1, the Group
is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from the
Reorganisation since management and equity holders of the
entities comprising the Group which took part in the
Reorganisation remained the same before and after the
Reorganisation. Consequently,
Reorganisation, there was a continuation of risks and benefits to
the ultimate controlling parties that existed prior to the
Reorganisation.

immediately after the
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION (continued)

64

(b)

()

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
Renminbi (“‘RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a)

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 January 2015

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle
Defined Benefit Plans :

Employee Contributions

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 19
(2011)

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following potentially relevant
new/revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet
effective, in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts

with Customers'

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test)
and that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments
that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all
financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

e Step 1: |dentify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step &: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the qualitative
and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs, but other than as
described above, the directors anticipated that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and position and/or on the
disclosures set out in this report.

3. XHEEBYBHREER

(%)

(b)

C MBS RERWEFE
i EETEBYBERE
ZE Bl (@)

BBV BHMEEAF155 —
BEFAHBA
BEMATENRIE - WRER
BER-ERNTERNSERER
R AHAERIERR M
mEREERAERENSZER
EPEEMAEBRIRYE BB
MBS ERFEIGFRIMARA W
SmERES - BREB G ERS
185 (e | - BEAR G ERE 115
[EEANIREERE-

BB % s R FE155% R E
B 2 P R A T {E] 2 R

o F1H  BREFEFPMIILAN
o F2X BRIANMBENEE

s E3F EERHER

o F4¥  NERFERESZED
BfE

s F5H NETEROEMLR
R U =

BEMBREEMNBEISREREY
HE RN E B ATIRIEE A MR
SEANHBOEN T EWRBEF
HHRERES - BRERITEE N
BEBBANEERESRKE-

AEBMBE EAEEZEMEM
BETREMBRS LN E

FE BERLAESN EEE
FEREAMFE] REEFTBAMK
BEEATEHEAKTENMB R
BRMARSARE R KE
ERERTE -



MMNEFHEHERMBERLT 2015 F 5§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ll'li\

Bt % kMY = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

(c)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, in relation to the preparation of financial statements
apply to the Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance, however the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, impacts on the presentation
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. For
example, the statement of financial position of the Company is
now presented in the notes to the financial statements rather
than as a primary statement and related notes to the statement
of financial position of the Company are generally no longer
presented.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and the entities (including structured
entities) now comprising the Group. Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (1) power over the investee, (2)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEE€H B E @

(Continued)

()

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
rates, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
depreciation rates are as follows:

Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset's estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Lease

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentive received from the lessor are
charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)
(i)

Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful live as
follows:

Computer software 5-10 years
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised
if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

. adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° the Group is able to sell the product; and

° sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEE€H B E @

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii)  Impairment
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired
(see the accounting policies in respect of impairment
losses of non-financial assets in note 4(f)).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The value-in-use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the assets and the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value by using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEH B E @

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial assets when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. A
regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a
financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to clients (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. At each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in other
categories of financial assets. For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEH B E @

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is
not reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEE€H B E @

(Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial liabilities

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial liabilities when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade payables, other payables and accruals, and amounts
due to a related company and subsidiaries, are initially
recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBEHRERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEH B E @

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from online transaction services represents service fees
received from mobile subscribers and online game users, net of
monies shared with the online game operators pursuant to the
terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators or the costs of mobile top-up credits sourced from
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors.
Revenue is recognised when mobile top-up transactions have
been completed.

Revenue from profit sharing with online game operators is
recognised in monthly basis and based on the fees received from
online game users, net of monies shared with the online game
operators pursuant to the terms of the cooperation agreements
with online game operators.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEE€H B E @

(Continued)

(i)

@)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from online advertising services is recognised in the
period in which the advertisement is displayed on a straight-line
basis, and when collection of the receivable is probable.

Revenue from provision of information technology services is
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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e MBEHRERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEH B E @

(Continued)

()

(k)

()

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised to other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Employee benefits

() Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)
(i)  Other benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all existing
and retired employees under these plans. Contributions to
these plans by the Group are expensed as incurred. The
Group has no further obligations for benefits for their
qualified employees under these plans.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEEH B E @

(Continued)

(o) Related parties

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FEE€H B E @

(Continued)

(o) Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Impairment allowances for trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
by assessing the recoverability based on credit history and
prevailing market conditions. This requires the use of estimates
and judgments. Allowances are applied to trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables and prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances at the end of each
reporting period.

Useful lives of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
for the intangible assets and the property, plant and equipment
of the Group. The estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of similar nature
and functions. The estimated useful lives could be different as a
result of technical innovations which would affect the related
amortisation and depreciation charges included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Estimate of income and deferred tax
provisions

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the amount of
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the income and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination were made.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online

transaction services

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the
mobile top-up services and suppliers of mobile top-up credits
and determines that the Group is providing online transaction
services in the majority of transactions by facilitating transactions
between online game operators and online game users, and
providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, and
accordingly reports revenue derived from such services on a net
basis.

In determining whether the revenue from online transaction
services shall be recorded on net basis or gross basis, the Group
has made reference to indicators and requirements stated in
HKAS 18 “Revenue”. Determining whether the Group is acting as
a principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all
relevant facts and circumstances, and the Group considers itself
has an agency relationship with online game operators under
HKAS 18 by assessing the following features that are arising from
its operations:

° It is the primary responsibility of the PRC
telecommunication companies and the online game
operators, and not the Group, for processing the mobile
top-up associated with the mobile top-up credits provided
to the mobile subscribers and the online game account
charging to the online game users’ accounts, respectively.

° The Group has minimal inventory risk for the transactions
with mobile top-up credits sourced from the online game
users as those mobile top-up credits were used to top up
the mobile subscriber’s requests instantaneously. Although
the Group sources some mobile top-up credits from the
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors
as buffer stocks in case there is a shortage of mobile top-
up credits from online game users, these stocks are used
solely to facilitate the transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online

(e)

transaction services (Continued)

o The service fees are usually predetermined pursuant to the
terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators.

° The credit risk of the Group is minimal as majority of the
mobile subscribers either pay in advance or at time of
requesting mobile top-up service, except for a minor
portion of customers who are granted with credit period.

Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”)

Beijing TJYL has been owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao and Mr. Wei
Zhonghua, the directors, and Mr. Wei Chunming, the then
director, since its establishment. Under the prevailing laws and
regulations in the PRC, companies with foreign ownership are
prohibited from engaging in the internet information services
business in the PRC. In order to enable the Company to obtain
control over Beijing TJYL and its directly or indirectly owned
subsidiaries, Beijing Shenzhoufu Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Shenzhoufu”), Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Youxiping”), Beijing Shenzhoufu Network Technology
Development Limited (“Shenzhoufu Network”) and Wanlefu
Technology Limited (“Wanlefu Technology”) certain structured
contracts (the “Structured Contracts”) were effectuated among
Beijing TJYL, Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Wei
Chunming and Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhoufu Software”) (a 100% indirectly owned subsidiary
of the Company), pursuant to which Shenzhoufu Software
undertakes to provide Beijing TJYL with certain information
consulting and technical supporting services in return for fees
which represent a substantial amount of the profit generated by
Beijing TJYL from its operation of online transaction services in
the PRC.

5. TESTHE REsTw

(d)

(e)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”) (Continued)

To determine whether control exists over Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries, the Group has considered the following factors in
accordance with HKFRS 10 paragraph 7:

The power over an investee to direct the relevant activities
that significantly affect the investee’s return was granted to
Shenzhoufu Software through the exclusive consulting and
services agreement, under which Shenzhoufu Software is
able to appoint directors, general manager and senior
management personnel of Beijing TJYL, and thus is able to
direct all major business decision of Beijing TJYL. Further,
Shenzhoufu Software is able to cast the majority of votes
at shareholder meetings. This right was transferred to
Shenzhoufu Software as stated in the shareholder voting
right entrustment agreement.

Pursuant to the exclusive consulting and services
agreement, substantially all profits of Beijing TJYL were
transferred through consulting and technical supporting
services fees payable by Beiing TJYL to Shenzhoufu
Software, which expose the Group to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and the shareholder
voting right entrustment agreement gives Shenzhoufu
Software the rights of the original shareholders including
the rights to any dividend.

5. TESTHE R w

) BAEXEEBBERNEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology

(f)

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”) (Continued)

o The Group has the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of its returns as it exercises its power
over Beijing TJYL on its own behalf and for its own benefit.
The Group has complete decision making authority over
Beijing TJYL and the Group’s decisions will significantly
affect the amount of its returns (i.e. the amount of the
profits of Beijing TJYL which it can obtain through the
consulting and technical supporting services fees charged
to Beijing TJYL).

As a result of the effects of the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL, Beijing Shenzhoufu, Beijing Youxiping and Shenzhoufu
Network are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company for
accounting purposes.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The directors review available-for-sale investments at the end of
each reporting period to assess whether they are impaired. The
Group records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity
investments when there has objective evidence that an
impairment indicator exists. The determination of whether the
impairment indicator exists requires judgment. In making this
judgment, management of the Group takes into account factors
such as significant changes with an adverse effect that has taken
place in technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the investees operate, and that indicates that the cost of
the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered.

5. TEGHHE R
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(9)

Interests in Joy Credit Online Limited in
which the Group holds less than 50% equity
interest

The Group owns 48% equity interests in Joy Credit Online
Limited. For the purpose of assessing whether or not the Group
has control over Joy Credit Online Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Joy Credit Group”), the directors considered
whether the Group has the ability to direct the relevant activities
of Joy Credit Group. In making this judgement, the directors
considered that the relevant activities of Joy Credit Online Limited
are directed by the board of directors and all resolutions of
directors’ meeting are passed by simple majority. Since the
Group is entitled to appoint 2 out of 3 directors into the board of
directors of Joy Credit Online Limited, the Group dominants the
board of directors of Joy Credit Online Limited and is able to
direct the relevant activities of Joy Credit Group. The directors of
the Company were therefore in the opinion that Group has
control over Joy Credit Group during the year despite its
shareholding therein was less than 50% and Joy Credit Online
Limited and its subsidiaries qualified as subsidiaries of the Group
under HKFRS 10 for the year ended 31 December 2015.

5. TESTHE R w

() A% E R Joy Credit

Online Limited& & &~ &
50% HY fE &

7N £ [# % & Joy Credit Online Limited
H48%HE - R HAEER DY
Joy Credit Online Limited &2 £ K & A
7] (5178 [ Joy Credit & &) % 5 12
EhME EEBEBEAEEREH
8¢ 1 #5 & Joy Credit & E & 18 B J&
g NEL L HETER  EERA
Joy Credit Online Limited & #8 £ & &
THEZCHRKEAMAEEZGR
ERYEHERSHESERB B
W 7K &2 & A # Z 1T Joy Credit Online
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(h) Power to exercise significant influence

Although the Group holds 20% or more of voting power (but not
over 50%) in some of its investees, the directors of the Company
were in the opinion that the Group does not have significant
influence over these investees because:

—  the Group did not have representation on the board of
directors or equivalent governing body of the investee;

— the Group did not have participation in policy-making
processes, including participation in decisions about

dividends or other distributions;

—  the Group did not have material transactions between the
entity and its investee;

—  there was no interchange of managerial personnel; and

—  the Group did not have provision of essential technical
information.

Therefore, the investments are treated as available-for-sale
investments. Details are given in note 17.

(h)

5. T E S5 HE R &5 @
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
regularly review revenue and operating results derived from provision of
online transaction services, profit sharing with online game operators,
provision of online advertising services and provision of information
technology services and consider such as one single operating
segment.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations
are located in the PRC.

Information about major clients

There is no single customer contributed to 10% or more revenue to the
Group’s revenue for the year.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, mainly represents the
service income from the provision of online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online
game users, and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers,
profit sharing with online game operators, provision of online advertising
services and provision of information technology services net of
business tax. An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as
follows:

vl E

AEEFBRRERRACDEERAR R
BITEF T ESEMEMEMHB L
RHERB oEBLERELE®EN
e A £ RS IR M B U B AR 7 P
EHBAREERE AR Z2RE—K

EHH -

AEBNMABREERTELE S8
2 EEF -

TFREEEFMNES
RAEFE BBE—FFEREE10%
A EBOA ©

WA~ AR K&

WARBAREENEXE TEEKXE
BEBRRER EERESHERLERA
FRNZXZRATHAPRERHETHESR
RERBREABLZZRSG - ARD
ERELEBELEEN REPBLES
PR 75 Ko B2 4 B 90 AR 75 & BR 75 U A (A8 40
BRaEEm) o WA - A RIS DT
m

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
1
Revenue: WA

Provision of online transaction services REHB X HRE 43,266 63,022
Provision of information technology services 12t B iy AR 75 5,060 =
Profit sharing with online game operators DARAE L EE 2 7 A = 61
Provision of online advertising services REAEESRE 3 11
48,329 63,094

Other income and gains: Halg A R s
Government grants IR 7S 168 B 312 1,000
Interest income F B WA 1,338 685
Others HAth 1 4
1,651 1,689
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BR P15 %i B X AlaE Al

EXPENSE

The Group’s profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

7N 55 8 B P 15 5% B 32 AT 0 M A B T 51

charging: BHEBEE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARETTT

Depreciation of property, plant and

mE BEEREBINE

equipment 527 554
Written off of property, plant and equipment MEE BB MEE 2 -
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 292 365
Impairment loss on prepayments FERFOREEE 301 206
Minimum lease payments under EFgLHEansERAe

operating leases for buildings 1,069 623
Development costs (note (a)) 7 3% AR AN (BT 5% (a) 3,742 2,677
Employee benefit expenses EEBNAX

(including directors’ remuneration) (BREEZHMH)

Wages and salaries TERE® 7,423 6,089

Pension scheme contributions RIREEHEIE R 1,166 1,010
Auditor’s remuneration 1 Al 3 B 458 469
Note: B3
(a) Development costs mainly comprise staff costs RMB3,308,000 for the (a) HEXKAEZBEE TKA E £2015

year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB2,319,000), which are also
included in the employee benefit expenses disclosed separately above.
The Group did not capitalise any development costs for the year ended

31 December 2015 (2014: nil).

F12A31H 14 A A R #3,308,0007T
(20144 : AR #2,319,0007T) » Mhit A £
SCE B EE B BARFIF XA - # ZE2015
F12A31 B IEFE - A% B 5 7 5
BN AR FTE AR (20144 < #8) ©
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 0. EEFH I

RIFEER ETRAURESE QB EH
(5622% ) B33 R AR (BFEZEF
HERDBRB(FeGE)IRE &S

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) is as follows: RAREEHNEHM T :
Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefit scheme
Fee in kinds  contributions Total
e 2RR BR&E
we BYR & [ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT AR T

90

Year ended HZE20155

31 December 2015 12831 LEEE
Executive directors HITEF
Mr. Sun Jiangtao BLEEE - 254 32 286
Mr. Tang Bin & 8 o A = 255 32 287
Non-executive directors FHTEFE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua BMpEiLLE = - - -
Mr. Zhang Zhen (note (b)) 3R BB % A& (B sE (b)) = = - -
Mr. Lan Xi (note (a)) 7 5 A (M e () = - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang (note (a)) FEX LA (@) - = - -
Ms. Guo Jia (note (b)) SBEL £ (K EE () = = - -
Independent non-executive B IEHITEE

directors
Mr. Yang Guang (note (b)) 15 3¢ 50 4 (M7 () = = - —
Mr. Hou Dong EREE 48 - - 48
Mr. He Qinghua fa] B 2 5 4 48 = — 48
Mr. Yang Haoran (note (a)) 2% R A (M 3T (@) 54 - = 54

150 509 64 723

Year ended HZE20145F

31 December 2014 12A31ALLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao RIEEE — 244 30 274
Mr. Tang Bin BB 5 = 230 30 260
Non-executive directors IFHITEE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua BAPELE = = — -
Mr. Zhang Zhen (note (b)) R B 5t A& (T 3% () - - - -
Ms. Guo Jia (note (b)) 204E 1 (Bt 5E (o) = = - -
Independent non-executive & IEH7TEE

directors
Mr. Yang Guang (note (b)) 53¢ 7 & (M 5E (b)) 48 - - 48
Mr. Hou Dong EREE 48 - - 48
Mr. He Qinghua A EEE S E 48 = - 48

144 474 60 678

Notes: B EE
(a)  Appointed on 9 April 2015 (@) R2015F4 AOB LT
(b) Resigned on 9 April 2015 (b) HA20154E 4 A9 H BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:

nil).

10

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, two (2014: two) of the five
highest paid employees were directors of the Company. Details of the

remuneration of the remaining three (2014: three) highest paid

employees of the Group are as follows:

0.

10.

EEH N

RE E2015F12831H tFE R
BEENERRENETMFMNOLH
(20144 « &) -

IEBREHER

REE20156F12A31BILFE > A& &
BHREREPEMEL(2014F : MB) BA
RAIEE -AEEBEHKR=F(2014F : =
H)EmTRERENTFMNFBERT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AR T T

I N 1
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EZEREYR S 823 861
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT B K 74 90
897 951

The remuneration of all the five highest paid employees fell within the
band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for each of the reporting periods.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid

employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None (2014: none) of the persons, who
were directors, waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the

year.

77

M= 7T & 1,000,000 7T R #E

=

RERSHE ALK HEBOFHH
7T

WA E201549F K2014E12 A31 8 IF &
EHE AEEBERESSIETNAS
BERyEEXNME EANALXER
B MAZBEHREI B BEE - RA
FE - HECOUF - E)FREENHA
ENEXRERETMS -
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE M.FABHAX

92

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated at the
applicable tax rates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
enterprise income tax rate of all the PRC subsidiaries, except for
Shenzhoufu Software (see note (a) below) and Beijing Shenzhoufu (see
note (b) below), was 25% on their taxable profits for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction of the
Cayman lIslands during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014 nil).

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

TEERTEMNHBAIREABER AL
B - BEREMREEZERNE;E -

BIE B AE R A R AR - Bl E20154F
N2014F12 A1 A IEFE - Fi A F Bk
B AR (8 58 1 M AT B (R SOt
(@) R b Z 3 M A (R T SBT3 (o) B9 R
BEEEMEHBEERORABRBEN
25% 5T & °

AKEBREZE2015F12A8318 IEFE
DESMNHASHEES R ZRE TN E
(20144 « ) - A A K B R & 22015
F12AMALEFENBRERTBELEREM
FERBAEF - WL EIEL BB NGB &
(20144  4E) -

ERA2ERSERAMBRNMERAX

Gk R

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax

IR IR — R B 1 X AT 1SR

— tax for the year — FAKIE 4,525 4,526
— withholding tax — FEMF = 300
4,525 4,826

Deferred tax (note 26) B SE R 18 (M 52 26) 2,507 1,963
Income tax expense FTig®if 7,032 6,789
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. FERE S @
AEBERAFENMEHAZIEESG S
T U 2 3= AR BR P15 0 B9 <2 B s 1 59 BR

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the Group’s
profit before income tax expense per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows: /(I
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBETF T
T ———
Profit before income tax expense B BT 15 % B 2 B i F 25,304 27,400
Tax on profit before income tax expense, BrETE R S AlE M FE
calculated at 25% (2014: 25%) 15 25% 5T & (2014 F : 25%) 6,326 6,850
Effect of different tax rates in EaliERTRRENEE
other jurisdictions 492 426
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A MBRASTARE T E 42 115
Tax losses not recognised RERHEEE 652 315
Income tax on concession rates HEEMEAENMEH
(note (a) & (b)) (P 5% (@) B (b)) (2,987) (3,180)
Withholding tax arising on undistributed B B8 2% B R 9 R s R 2 AR Y
profits in a subsidiary (note (c)) FEH (M aE ) 2,507 2,263
Income tax expense Frg i X 7,032 6,789

Notes:

(@)

Shenzhoufu Software successfully obtained the “National High
Technology Enterprise” status as at 30 October 2014, and this
qualification is valid for 3 years starting from 2014 and the applicable PRC
enterprise income tax rate was 15% for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: 15%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Beijing
Shenzhoufu qualified as “Software Enterprise” and is entitled to exemption
from the PRC enterprise income tax for two years commencing from its
first profit-making year of operation, following by a 50% reduction in the
applicable tax rate for the next three years. Beijing Shenzhoufu’'s
preferential tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2015 was 12.5% (being
50% of the standard tax rate of 25%) (2014: 12.5%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Accordingly, Shenzhoufu
Software, being a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the
PRC, is liable to a 10% withholding tax on its undistributed profit as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations.

GEE

1M B A 201410 B30 B AX T ER 8
[BREAEMEEIERE  EREXHA
2014F A HI = F - & £2015F12 A 31
HIEFE HEROPECEMSHRE
£15% °

BEFBEABEEERER ERBNEFE
BRRABIRHLE] BEEEAENEXSF
ERIAMEANERCHEMPREDEMS
B UREBR=FrBERB R I
RN RE Z2015F12A31H LFE
BB BB E B12.5% (BIAE £ E25% 7
4) (20144 : 12.5%) ©

RiEH BEAREREIASR  RPBEKZI
IELERIIBEIREESIRORBABH
10% TR - W B EINEIRE H FER
FREBAABRBGRG  ARENTROME
AREE A Bk NS ESE (B -BR
FERZNIEBEBEDE) ARRETH
B &R R R A6 I BT B TE B R 93 I s A A A
10% B
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

12. DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average of 480,000,000 ordinary shares (2014: 480,000,000) of the
Company.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
nil).

12. Ik &

R E Z22015F &2014FE12A31H Ik F
EHMEEZ IR EMKE -

13. 8RR EF

BREABAIIERARNRGESE AEG
F 2% F) & b0k - ¥5 #4480,000,000 %
A% (2014 4F : 480,000,000 %) 5+ & -

H EZ2015F12A31H IEFE W &£ B
LTERET MUKV ZREERF
(20144  f®|) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4.9 ¥ - BER&1E

Office Computer Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
WAERE BIRE RE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T ARETT ARETIT AREBTE

31 December 2015 M2015%12H31H
Cost: PR

At 1 January 2015 H2015%F1 81 H 260 2,386 917 3,563

Additions NE — 553 276 829

Written-off 88 = (44) = (44)
At 31 December 2015 R20159F 12 A31H 260 2,895 1,193 4,348
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHITE -

At 1 January 2015 R2015%F1A1H 234 1,353 437 2,024

Charge for the year F AR 8 377 142 527

Written back on written-off 8 2 B m — (42) — (42)
At 31 December 2015 R20154F 12 A31H 242 1,688 579 2,509
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 H 18 1,207 614 1,839
31 December 2014 2014512831 H
Cost: AR

At 1 January 2014 20144181 B 260 1,835 917 3,012

Additions NE = 5131 — 551
At 31 December 2014 MR2014F12 A31H 260 2,386 917 3,563
Accumulated depreciation: ZETITE -

At 1 January 2014 R2014%1A1H 210 1,032 228 1,470

Charge for the year F &% 24 321 209 554
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 234 1,353 437 2,024
Net book value: BREFE -

At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 26 1,033 480 1,639
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z2015F12A310IEFE

5
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B8 &E
Computer
software
BB
RMB’000
ARET T
|
31 December 2015 M2015%12831H
Cost: pNE
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1A1H 3,940
Additions (note (a)) ANE (KL @) 619
At 31 December 2015 ®2015412 831 H 4,559
Accumulated depreciation: SEHE -
At 1 January 2015 MH2015F1A1H 2,136
Charge for the year F RN 292
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31H 2,428
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2015 ©2015% 12 A31H 2,131
31 December 2014 MA2014%12831H
Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 K2014%1 810 2,104
Additions (note (b)) WNE (B () 1,836
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 3,940
Accumulated depreciation: 2FIE
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F181H 1,771
Charge for the year F AR 365
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 2,136
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F 12 A31H 1,804
Notes: Bt 5
(@)  The additions of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 (@ HZE2015F 128318 IEFEE N2 EF
included intangible assets of RMB334,000 from non-controlling interests BEEREREMELN AR ARFEZER
of Wanlefu Technology. R ER B EE ARK334,0007T °
(o)  The additions of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2014 (b) HZE2014F12A31BIEFEE N2 EF
included intangible assets of RMB1,470,000 contributed from non- BEBERE M AR 1R R = E B

controlling interests of Shenzhoufu Network. 2 EMEEANRKE1,470,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RfIB A TIWIRE

The particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 AT HARAIMB AR 25

are as follow: B
Issued and fully Attributable equity
Place and date paid share capital/ interests held by Place of operation and
Name of incorporation registered capital the Company principal activities
E it B 3 3t B ERTRHARRE AR
£18 kB EUE-&N FE 1k IR 7 4 22 REBHRTEEH
Direct Indirect
B i $
Shen Zhou Xing Limited Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding in
(“Shen Zhou Xing”) 19 May 2008 HK$1 for 1 ordinary Hong Kong
share
HINITER AR o BB RERERAR REBKREER
(M3 M171) 200845 A 19H 1B T E @R
Shenzhoufu Software' PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Provision of consulting
3 July 2008 RMB80,906,740 and technical supporting
services to group companies
in the PRC
K0 A B E - HMEERARK R E R E A aR M
200847 A3H 80,906,740 7T, ) R B SR IR
Beijing TJYL? PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Provision of online transaction
| July 2005 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
b R B FE - AMERARE R ERES X5 R
20057 A1H 10,000,000 7T
Beijing Shenzhoufu? PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Provision of online transaction
25 May 2011 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
1k w42 HE AMERARE NP BERERE 5 RS
2011 5H25H 10,000,000 7T
Beijing Youxiping® PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Profit sharing with online game
2 August 2012 RMB10,000,000 operators and provision of
online advertising services
in the PRC
3b R B2 FE - AMERARE DIEE EBERELERER R
201248 A2H 10,000,0007T EREREHE EESRYG
Shenzhoufu Network®* PRC, Registered capital of — 51%  Provision of internet information
18 July 2014 RMB3,000,000 service business in the PRC
N AT 48 4 > HE AMERARE R ER MRS R
201447 A18H 3,000,0007T IS E
Prajna Technology Limited  British Virgin Islands Issued and fully paid 100% —  Investment holding

(“Prajna Technology”)

('BVI"),

US$1 ordinary shares

30 April 2015
Prajna Technology Limited ~ B R Z A & BT RARKRAR REER
(TPrajna Technology |) (HBEXES] 1ETTEBR
2015 4 A30H
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuie) 16. R B A A VIR E @)

Issued and fully Attributable equity
Place and date paid share capital/ interests held by Place of operation and
of incorporation registered capital the Company principal activities
o AR 3L it B ERTR#ARZRE D E R
kBH - EBiERAER REMBRFTETER
Direct Indirect
HE 5

Joy Credit Online Limited>® Cayman Islands,

Lexiang Online Net Limited® ° Hong Kong,

LTERBEARRAES FE-

Wanlefu Technology 28 PRC,

MENBRERAR  HE

Issued and fully paid

Issued and fully paid
HK$1 ordinary shares

BETRARRKRAR
1B TEBER

16 February 2015

201542 A16H

Registered capital of

25 November 2014 RMB1,350,000

FEE AR

201411 A25H A R #1,350,0007C

48%  Investment holding

3 February 2015 US$9,460 ordinary
shares
Joy Credit Online Limited®® 285 - BT RARRKRAR BEER
201542 A3H 9,460 7T % i AR

48%  Investment holding

wEER

Wanlefu Software PRC, Issued and fully paid — 48%  Investment holding
Technology Limited”® 11 September 2015 US$1,950,000 ordinary
shares
DTS B R FE - BT RA R R AR
BRLAA" 2015 9A11H 1,950,000 3 7T & il fig

51%  Provide promotion and
distribution services of
online game products for
online game operators

BB EEEERIRMES
2 165 E o B9 HE BE R 9 8

R %%
Bt 5

Shenzhoufu Software, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Shen Zhou 1. NG RBMNITOHEE S ﬁ BB A
Xing, is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of Bl RIBFBUAREMAIEEARE -
the PRC.
Interests existed by virtue of certain contractual arrangements as 2. HI S5 e FAN R EaER -
described in note 5(e).
Beijing Youxiping, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing 3. It RBEEEAEIL T ENNEESEW B
Shenzhoufu, is registered as a limited company under the laws of the NEl BERREEIMAERSEEITA
PRC. CIK
Shenzhoufu Network, a 51% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing TJYL, is 4. SN A 48 48 A BT M TS B 51 % B B 42 Y
registered as a limited company under the laws of the PRC. EBAF BEFEE2EIMAERSEA

ik
Joy Credit Online Limited, a 48% directly owned subsidiary of Pranja 5. Joy Credit Online Limited 2 Pranja Technology
Technology. BEHIBNERNEZNBAR -
Lexiang Online Net Limited, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Joy 6. 245 75 19 49 46 5 R A 7 /5 Joy Credit Online

Credit Online Limited.

Limted W B ZEMHMB QA
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17

Notes: (Continued)

7. Wanlefu Software Technology Limited, a 100% directly owned subsidiary
of Lexiang Online Net Limited, is registered as limited company under the
laws of the PRC.

8. Wanlefu Technology, a 51% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing TJYL, is
registered as limited company under the laws of the PRC.

9. The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding holding less than
half of the voting rights of these companies, having considered in
substance all facts and circumstances the Group has control over these
companies. See note 5(g) for further details.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

16. R B A TR E @)

(&)

7. MENBEHRBRERAADREZTERBE
BERAFANZEMBAR  BREHEER
AMABRRT -

8. DMENMRAERABDRIERREBHES
S1%ERNEEZMNE AR RIEPBIERE
AMKIABERAF -

9. BERZERAFALRLENRERE
EBEERLEERMAFTERBAR E=F
RRAAEEEAZE A BRG] - —
H B RMEES(Q) e

AHHESMEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT

FLEMBEAES  BRA

Unlisted equity securities, at cost

20,910 1,300

The amount represents investment in 5 private companies in the PRC,
which are engaged in Bitcoin trading and information, social
communication, renovation service platform, IT system development,
and peer-to-peer lending service platform in the PRC. The unlisted
available-for-sale equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
at each reporting date because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that fair value cannot be reliably measured. The
directors of the Company have no intention to dispose of the available-
for-sale financial assets at the end of reporting period.

The Group’s strategic investments are 25.9% equity interest in Leyu
Limited and 20% equity interest in Shijiazhuang Aigigi Information
Technology Co. Ltd.. These companies are not accounted for using
equity method as the Group does not have significant influence over
these companies, evidenced by the lack of any direct or indirect
involvement at board level.

ZEBRERTELELEARZKE
ERRARETERELFERIHUARE
BouHeBA AFREFE TER
mAERPPEERBF A -ELTH
SRR E 570 & WS B R IR AR
MESE DRARATEAEBMKEE
BEEKR - Bt ARREEFRARER
FETRAFAE - RBREHR AR
AEEESHETHIEESREE -

AEBEMEBERE BRI Blew
Limited ¥925.9% # &5 M FE AR T B &
TEMBI AR B R R AI20%H) 2 o
AASEEHEESSRTRNEEESE
HHESE ARHZEARTESEA
R WZERRARERARREAR-
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. %% FE U Fr I8 K FE IR

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET R ARETTT

Trade and bills receivables from: ERTIIALTHE S R FKIEA
eI =i
— Third parties —%=5 3,360 3,391
The Group normally does not grant credit period to its customers. For a KEB—REBEATI B TFTEFLEE
minor portion of customers who are granted credit period, the credit H-RE=EEEHNIBERLPME &
period is generally 90 days. The Group seeks to apply strict control BEH— AR KREB BN EKIEG
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. All the trade and MAKEBEKREAZEREEER
bills receivables are non-interest bearing. B-FMBEESRURARELEREES A
BB o
The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of impairment ES5RWRERERER(GIRRERE
losses) are as follows: B)RNEREITWAT
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
7
0 to 3 months 0=3f@ A 3,109 3,390
3 to 6 months 3ZE61EA 194 =
6 months to 1 year 618 A =14 56 -
110 2 years 1E24% 1 1

3,360 3,391
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18.EZEWRIEREW
. =
(Continued) = % (%)
The analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that were past REREHR REESHEEKRE
due but not impaired as at the end of each of the reporting periods is MESEWZFBEBREKREEN DTN
as follows: N
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AR T T
T ———
Neither past due nor impaired (note (a)) 7 180 HA & ARORUE (T 3 (a) 3,359 3,390
Within 12 months past due (note (b)) wEALR12ME B (WD) = -
More than 12 months past due (note (b)) wHEAEE12ME A (b)) 1 1
3,360 3,391
Notes: B 5E

(@) The balances that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

(b) Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment based
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(g)(ii).

@  REHRARRENER LR EERC
BMAEEFP AR -

(o) B HE AR R E A MR IE B A AN S
RERFBELENRBBLESHRH -
REBELR EFRABNEEERL
BEREHRERDER ST ZHKE -
HBARZS/HRELRERE - A5 H
I 8 5k 8% 5 4 RS B AT () 59 G S EL 4 A
BIEEHEIE -

AN £ AR B B 5 4(0) (i) FT 51 A & 5T IEUR &
{8 5l ¥ £ FE 2B (BB 18 -
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

19. B % REREME

=+,

™ IE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETT

Prepayments (note (a)) TR (M5t () 59,312 42,353

Other receivables (note (b)) H e W 3k I8 (I 5% (b)) 9,569 2,463

Deposits bk 3 9

68,884 44,825

Notes: B EE -

(@)  The Group’s prepayments were prepayments to online game operators (@) AEEMNBEBANRARNELESREEARE
and distributors of telecommunication companies in amount of ERADHEBEMNAFKIE  R2015612A8
RMB59,135,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB42,007,000). 31E M€ 8 A AR IK59,1350007T (2014

F : AR #¥42,007,0007T) °
(o) Included in the Group’s other receivables were required guarantee funds (o) RNEE R H b BKRIEBIE N AR i

deposited to online game operators in amount of RMB2,035,000 as at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB1,630,000). Under cooperation agreements
with the online game operators, the Group is required to make guarantee
funds of a pre-agreed amount to the online game operators upon entering
into the relevant cooperation agreements.

FBIEZEBRINMRFS - K2015F 12 A31
A< EAARK20350007T (2014 F :
A R %1,630,00070) ° 1R 45 £ 48 95 5 0E
BRI NEERE AEEERITYE
BEEhER P L EEEEmEL —2
BEBESENRES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT
L —

Pre-paid mobile top-up credits ENFHREERTESRE 54,549 35,784
Online game products HEWERED 260 327
54,809 36,111
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 21. EWNEAE A R R IE
COMPANIES
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT
L —

Beijing Guotongbao Holdings Co., Ltd. IEREBERODBERA R
(“Beijing GTB”) ([JERBEmE ) 1,411 1,411
Beijing Qiandaibao Payment ItRBEREINEMERA R
Technology Ltd. (“Beiing QDB”) ([t REBERE]) 1,531 2,562
2,942 3,973
The related companies are either controlled by the directors or BEANFIYEELY T ESE
significant influenced by the directors, and the balances are non-trade Z MmMZEEHAEEESIHEE & ?Eﬁ
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. H REREREREES -
Maximum amounts due from the related parties are as follows: JEWWRBE AT RS ZXRBEN T
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT
L —

Beijing GTB IR EE 1,411 6,087
Beijing QDB It RERE 2,562 2,562

103



China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R R MR (&)
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22 %

BRAFENABENS
g

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARETT

Investment in Bitcoin, at fair value BAFERELFE

986 600

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bitcoin is based on quoted
market price.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AEELBERENAFEDERTS

B.RERRESEEY
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Cash and bank balances e NIRRT

45,499 64,820

The cash and cash equivalents of RMB33,290,000 was denominated
in RMB at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB64,685,000). RMB is not a
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC Government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

104

MR2015F12A31H BREeRBEESEEY
A A R #33,290,0007T (2014 4F = A R #
64,685,0007T) * MARBE - AR
BAMERLBER RBEESEDLS
B 78 5 B B IR AT B 0 Y B PR 1) A9 AR
PR o

RITBREDREBEESHRTHERNENZ
BRI B o 31T 45 848 o 17 IR T H
WEEDCTHEBRIRITOER -
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. B G EFFE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT

Trade payables to ERTIALTHE ZENR

— Third parties —%®=7"

18 :

45,760 41,989

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally granted
credit terms ranging from 1-30 days.

The aging analysis of trade payables are as follows:

BHRNRBEARE - AEEH —RER
MEEHNTF1EI0K -

BEHRNFENREDFTOT
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBTT

0 to 3 months 0Z3@A 43,515 39,539
3 to 6 months 3Z26MEA 16 633
6 months to 1 year FERERE:S 47 826
Over 1 year 1F A 2,182 991

45,760 41,989

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25.

HttEIRERETEA

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARETT

Receipts in advance TE U R K 9,674 7,187
Other payables and accruals HMENFRIEREFER 2,818 2,150
Other tax payables H b fE TR 1,347 409

13,839 9,746
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26. DEFERRED TAX

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements during
the current and prior year:

26. IE %t i 18

RAEERBEFECERBETCHER
BEREHFE:

Deferred tax liabilities B EERE

Undistributed
earnings of
PRC subsidiary
o BB A A
KRB R
RMB’000
AR T T

]
At 1 January 2014 20141 A1H 2,403
Charged to profit or loss (note 11) BEZ M (ME11) 1,963
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R2014F12 A31 H &2015F1 A1 H 4,366
Charged to profit or loss (note 11) BHEZME (1) 2,507
At 31 December 2015 #2015 12 31 H 6,873

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB3,975,000 (2014: RMB1,367,000) which would expire in five
years’ time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the unused tax losses as the directors considered that the impact is
minimal.

Expiry years of unrecognised tax losses:

HR20156F 12 A31H  AEBMAH AR
% & 18 A AR #3,975,0007T (2014 F ¢
AR #1,367,0007T) * i§RA A F A EIH -
HRESRAEFETK MU ERXD
AREERREREEHREEE -

ARHER LTS B 18 8 a4 1 -
2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTTT

2018 20184
2019 20194
2020 2020 4F

107 107
1,260 1,260
2,608 =
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maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

Management regards total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately RMB119,638,000 (2014: RMB100,652,000)
which management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the strategic opportunities.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. IR 7R
Authorised and issued share capital EERCBITRA
2015 2014
Number RMB’000 Number RMB’000
2B ART R B ARBFT
) 755 e
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of & R%0.001 3T HY
US$0.001 each T E R 1,000,000,000 6,148 1,000,000,000 6,148
Issued and fully paid ERITREHBE
Ordinary shares of HFR%0.001 & T HY
US$0.001 each Tk
At beginning and end of REYRER
the year 480,000,000 2,941 480,000,000 2,941
Capital management policy EREBERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEBEANETEZEZARER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to EEREBECE  THIFEENELAL

TR o

AEBEEEEAREREELEMN
MEPHELHE - BEFIIABELAR
B ARBEARERRROREIKM
MRRHE R REHBEITHR - RAF
B U EHEEEANER  BENIE
Fr {2 e

EEEBRARAEEAERLBERZREE
Ao R2015F12A31H EASBOAE
A R #119,638,0007C (2014 F : A R ¥&
100,652,0007C) - B E L E EEAE
AAZRFE#EGE BRRBREKT-
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28. RESERVES 28. f# 1
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out in the AREBNREEESHABENGARTE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Movements on the X ANATNFEEEESHNNGOT

Company'’s reserves are set out below:

Share Accumulated

Company P NN Premium losses Total
IR 13 % 18 REtEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
(note (a)) (note (d))
(P 3£ (2)) (B EE ()
) S
At 1 January 2014 201451 A1 H 47,899 (12,174) 35,725
Loss and total comprehensive FRABELEZERAEEE
income for the year - (1,799) (1,799)
At 31 December 2014 and M201456F12 A31 H
1 January 2015 20151 A1H 47,899 (13,973) 33,926
Loss and total comprehensive FABEBMEEBRAELRE
income for the year — (2,000) (2,000)
At 31 December 2015 201512 A31H 47,899 (15,973) 31,926
(@) Share premium (a RHBEE
Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, R EERER A BB LEEE
less of share issuing costs. TEIE WGBTS
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28 R ESERVES (Continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Capital reserve

The reserve is arising from the capital contribution from equity
holders resulted from the Reorganisation and also from the
deemed contribution from equity holders in connection with the
tax losses incurred by the related parties in prior years.

The deemed capital contribution from equity holders represents
the savings of income tax payable to tax authority for the Group’s
business operated by the related parties that should otherwise
be incurred should the related parties be not in a tax loss
position, and the Group records this tax savings as capital
contribution from the equity holders and the equivalent amount
as income tax expense for the period.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses), as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve shall be made before
distribution of dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve
fund can be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any.

Retained earnings/accumulated losses

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

(b)

(©)

(d)

28. & 8 )

N
HHDASEERRERE ALE
BA KR B 35 1 A B BE A 7
B4 B A BT R E R
EMEE -

BEREFEATERRBEEAL
7R N SR B SR TS R A A TS M B Y
FEBEE  MEEALTLERE
BEAeHBAMSHRES  mA
SESHBHEHEREARRESR
FANIENRERTBARBAMR
BHFEX -

EERE
RERPBREEERAAT  AR2AR
B B ST R K ) BT A BB AR B
PR s R B ORI BR R R R
(AR S8BT FEE18) 10% 8 BX
THE HEEREEHRETMER
50% & I o ¥ It 5 5 0 B BB R 1)
BB ADKBEREL <& TE
EEEeAEREBAEFERS
(IA) -

REBR R EHIE

ST BEN B RERN R F RS
K JE1R -
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 29, Bt # ik % 3%

2015 2014
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &£ ARBTR AR®TT

Assets E5E
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B A RIEE = -
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE o R E fth E W 5K IR 86 161
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U BT /B A R 3R 49,923 49,923
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 189 29
Total current assets MEBEERTE 50,198 50,113
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries N ENGIE S 14,791 12,298
Other payables and accruals Hih R FIBRER B A 540 948
Total current liabilities mEBAEAeRE 15,331 13,246
Net current assets MENE EFRE 34,867 36,867
NET ASSETS EEFHE 34,867 36,867
Equity E=
Issued capital BEITIRA 27 2,941 2,941
Reserves s 28 31,926 33,926
TOTAL EQUITY ESBH 34,867 36,867

On behalf of the Board

REREZEFE
Wei Zhonghua Sun Jiangtao
B BI®
Director Director
EF EF

110



MMNEFHEHERMBERLT 2015 F 5§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B RRMWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had the following
material related party transactions:

(a) Related party transactions

30. AEALRS

BRAREE MM AW EESN REH
BETUTERABEALRS

(@ BAEALXRS

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Rental charges paid to directors NTPESENHHEEH

633 577

The transactions are charged at a pre-determined rate mutually
agreed by the parties.
(b) Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors is as follows:

R DETNTHEBENFASL
BEBERKE-

b) FEEBASHM

FEBNTRZEBASHH(BE
EXNTPARREENSR)INAT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT
L —

Short-term employee benefits HEEEREA

861 1,672

The remuneration of the Group’s key management personnel fell
within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014.

(c) During the year ended 31 December 2015, Beiing QDB provided
the usage of electronic payment platform to the Group without
any charges. The gross transaction amounts via the internet
payment platform for the year ended 31 December 2015 were
RMB38,855,000 (2014: RMB86,268,000).

R £2015F K20149F12 A31H
HFE AEBFTZBEBEABNH
B 18 E T - =8 JT = 1,000,000
on

() #=2015%F12A31BIEEE - 4
AREKBEHRIAEEREFAE
YHRF & BHE22015F12A318
IHFE SBEBBNRTEEST
R 5K #E R A R #38,8550007T
(20144 + AR #86,268,0007T) °
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31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. EEHE A

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The leases AREERBEEHEOMES TWE - %
for properties usually run for an initial period of three months to two EYEROBTVNST AR =ZEAEMN
year. Fo
At the end of each of the reporting period, the total future minimum RERE B KR - AL BB E A B
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payables RETHAENOARZEEERBESR
as follows: mr
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
| ———
Within one year —F R 1,070 569
One year to two years —EMF 571 =

1,641 569

112



MMNEFHEHERMBERLT 2015 F 5§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e MBEHRERMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY NR.EZEHNE NI A
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts and fair value of each of the categories of REBEREH RO S BIEBERNE SN SR
financial instruments as at the end of each of the reporting periods are TEMEEELAFEET :
as follows:
2015 2014
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE NFE REE NS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TrT ARETRT
L S —
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AR ETHEE -
— Unlisted equity securities —ELETMRAES 20,910 N/A R~EAA* 1,300 N/A TEmR*
Fair value through profit or HNTFEGFARZ
loss — held for trading: —HIEEE :
— Bitcoin at quoted market — BT ®RE 986 986 600 600
Loans and receivables: ER R ERFRIE :
— Trade and bills receivables — B 5 R WREE Rk
=g 3,360 3,360 3,391 3,391
— Financial assets included — AR -Ee Rk
in prepayments, deposits H b fE R TE R
and other receivables CREE 68,798 68,798 44,664 44,664
— Amounts due from — FEW R E N A FUA
related companies 2,942 2,942 3,973 3,973
— Cash and cash equivalents —HEeRIREEED 45,499 45,499 64,820 64,820
142,495 121,585 118,748 117,448
Financial liabilities cREaE
Financial liabilities measured HEEK A 28y
at amortised cost: EHEE -
_ Trade payables — B S EMRE 45,760 45,760 41,989 41,989
— Financial liabilities included — st AH M ENKIE R
in other payables and EirERMNesmaE
accruals 12,492 12,492 9,337 9,337
58,252 58,252 51,326 51,326

*

The available-for-sale financial assets are measured at cost less impairment,

and no fair value can be determine due to the range of estimation is

significant (note 17).

*

AHLESREERKARBRENE AR
ETEERA  BEAEE A FE(HET7) -
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (Continued)

R2.EZFHEATHEMT A

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments carried
at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities;

()

TREHBBATFEERRAFEFE
eI ADH:

E1EMR

HEERTEREAREELR
REUS 2 WE CREHE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that Fo2EM  NEBE1RBEUINZ EE K
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as BEZAERE ASE &
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and o B (ANEAR) s (A
RERHER) Rk
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on FIBL: EEBERITIFENAER
observable market data (unobservable inputs). THEBEBECZEESEER A
IR (P EBRE AR
2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1EBR F2BAR EIB/A @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR¥®TR AR%®ETxR
- ) O
Financial assets at fair value BRAFHEFAEBREN
through profit or loss SREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — LB mIEmE 986 — — 986
2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1ER E2ER EIER HET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARETT ARETT
]
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFAEREN
through profit or loss SREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — LB HISRE 600 — — 600
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z£2015F12A310ILFE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTAND 33.¢GiEaBMeEERAFHE

FAIR VALUE

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and balances with related companies.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of the Company.
Therefore, the risk on foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and cash and cash equivalents. There was no history of default for
amounts due from related companies and other receivables, and the
bank deposits are placed in the banks with high credit-ratings.

In respect to trade and bills receivables, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy customers and the receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis.
However, the Group had a certain degree of concentration of credit risk
on trade and bills receivables. The trade and bills receivables from the
five largest debtors as at 31 December 2015 represented 88% (2014:
95%) of total receivables, respectively, while the largest debtor
represented 33% (2014: 61%). Given the credit worthiness and
reputation of the major debtors, the directors believe the risk arising
from concentration is manageable and not significant.

rAEBEZRzREENIAGE MRS
ER2EBEY BHREMERFR-
B REMBENRIE UREFERF
MRS RS o

AEENSRIAMEENETERRA
SNERKR - EERBRTBHESRAR -
EESEEHIRAEEESHERROK
BT o

S 85 L B

AEBNEBEE AERXZEEN
ARBFHE ARBABEARABNIEE
%o EItL - SMNE R R AR K o

FERR

AEENEERRIZRAEZESHER
RBERERRE - EMEKFE - BK
MERAIRBALRRERRASEEY - B
Yo 8 3 2 B SRR K H A 8 WO IR 3 4
Rask BRTEREFRESEEFR
HERTT

HESERFEREREEMS A%
EERNEZBEERINERRS A
W EB DR FEERER ISR EITE
RoRM AEEE—TREELGEE
FRERFEREREZEEEERBREFRS
Moo 201512 A31H KRB A AER
ARE S ERFIE D Bk W R IE A5
#788% (2014 4F : 95%) : il & A & % A
A 1533% (20145 : 61%) - ER £ B F
BANGCEEREE EZHEEFEL
WERAMZEF R TERKX -
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FAIR VALUE (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of cash flows from operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was less than one year.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to the relative short term maturity of
these financial instruments.

34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 15 March 2016.

34

()
REBESRR

AEENBERRBENAKEEXBRS
MEERHEENESHEREZHAR
FrG -AEBEMRTAEIEESN
N HERE R A EIRE N M A
Z-RESITHARBEANT REER
EREMRANERABINHBE DN —
& o

ATE

TREERERABNREERGES M
BRAANRBEHKATER BBRZE
ERMTAMIPARE  REKEER
HAFEMBE -

#E B RS R

K BHRERN2016F3A150 EEFE
M IR RE B o
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